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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

OVERVIEW

Since the Group has signed the sales and purchase
agreements with independent third parties for the disposal
of Harbin China Distillery Company Limited and BAPP
(Northwest) Limited on 24 February 2014 and 26 March
2014 respectively. It represented the entire ethanol business
segment of the Group, so the Group reclassified the whole
ethanol business segment as assets held for sale as at
the reporting date. The revenue, cost of sales and various
expenses related to the whole ethanol business segment
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year”) were
included in the loss from discontinued operations (net of
tax) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the Year, as comparative figures.

For the Year, the continuing operations of the Group
achieved a revenue of approximately HK$94.18 million (2012:
HK$144.74 million), representing a decrease of 34.93%
from last year. Gross profit for the continuing operations
of the Group was approximately HK$15.84 million (2012:
HK$36.95 million). The loss (net of taxation) from continuing
operations was HK$29.13 million and the loss from
discontinued operations (net of tax) was HK$132.86 million.
Loss attributable to owners of the parent was approximately
HK$126.77 million (2012: HK$277.80 million), representing
an decrease of 54.37% from last year. Loss per share for the
Year was HK10.61 cents (2012: HK23.31 cents). For the Year,
the Group's ethanol business constituted the key revenue
generator of the Group.

The Group will continue to control the costs and focus on
existing resources to further strengthen and grow the Group's
businesses, both organically and through acquisitions when
appropriate opportunities arise.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Ethanol business

The Group's ethanol business is principally engaged in the
production and sale of ethanol products and ethanol by-
products in the PRC. Currently, Harbin China Distillery
Company Limited (“Harbin Distillery”), a 75% owned
subsidiary of the Group, manages and operates an ethanol
production facility located in Harbin, PRC. This ethanol
production facility is designed to have an annual production
capacity of 60,000 tonnes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the profitability of Harbin Distillery is highly
sensitive to ethanol and corn price and the demand for
ethanol products is partly correlated to the downstream
liquor industry. The ethanol business recorded revenue of
approximately HK$346.61 million, up 534.97% over last
year and accounted for 78.63% (2012: 27.39%) of the total
revenue.

Wine and liquor business

The Group's wine and liquor business is principally engaged
in the sale and distribution of wine and liquor in the PRC.
Currently, the Group operates a retail and distribution
network for selling wine and liquor in Guangzhou, Harbin
and Hunan Province of the PRC. The Group had 28 wine and
liquor specialty stores and 22 franchise stores in Guangzhou.
The Group is the exclusive distributor of Diancang Jiugui and
Meiming Wenshi in China until May 2020.

Since 2012, the revenue of this business was hit by PRC
government calls for cracking down on extravagance in
government departments and state-owned institutions
and enterprises and plasticiser contamination scandal.
The operating environment of the liquor industry in China
remained difficult during the Year. The Group will closely
monitor the market situations and trends and adopt
corresponding measures of risk management to alleviate
the negative impacts. Meanwhile, the Group will continue
to improve the product mix and focus on higher margin
products to grow its business. Apart from strengthening the
established markets, the Group will strive to expand its retail
and distribution network to other parts of China.

Due to the government policy, during the Year, the wine and
liquor business recorded revenue of approximately HK$94.18
million (2012: HK$144.74 million), down 34.93% from last
year and accounted for 21.37% (2012: 72.61%) of the total
revenue. Gross profit was approximately HK$15.84 million
(2012: HK$36.95 million), representing a decrease of 57.13%
from last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

Animal feed business

During the Year, as the Group directed most of its resources
to the development of the Group’s ethanol business and
wine and liquor business, and as a result the development of
the Group's animal feed business was hindered.

In 2014, the Group will continue to pursue additional
potential locations for future facilities, which involve
consideration of a number of criteria including availability
of raw materials and infrastructure, potential strategic
partnerships, logistics and other market factors. In addition, if
the memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") mentioned
in this report materialises, the Company intends to utilise the
land for development of an eco-pasture base.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Group will continue to explore the new markets and
increase the promotion and marketing activities to expand
the existing business. The Group would also look for other
business and related profitable business for acquisition
purpose.

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
Acquisition

In order to seek for more business opportunities and to
maximize return to shareholders of the Company, on 5
July 2013, Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi Trading Limited
("SZMM"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the equity transfer agreement with
an independent third party to acquire 51% of the equity
interest of Ningxia Kelong Industrial Co. Limited (“Target
Company”) to explore the possibility of diversification of the
Group's business. The Target Company engages principally
in promotion and application of research and development
in plant biotechnology, promotion and application in plant
cloning technology, cropping and marketing in vegetable and
floriculture and operations in green food business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Disposal

(i)

(ii)

On 24 February 2014, SZMM, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the agreement (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreement dated 26 February 2014)
with the Zhaodong Beidahuang Biotechnology
Limited and Linxiang Huayin Changjiang Small and
Medium Enterprises Guarantee Limited, SZMM has
conditionally agreed to sell all 75% equity interest
in Harbin China Distillery Company Limited held by
SZMM at the consideration of RMB40 million (“Harbin
Disposal”). The Directors considered that the Harbin
Disposal provides a good opportunity for the Group
to improve the financial performance of the Group.
The sale proceeds from the Harbin Disposal could
enhance the Group’s working capital position as well
as providing additional capital resources for the Group
to make future investment in potential projects when
opportunity arises. Therefore, the Directors considered
the Harbin Disposal is in line with the Group’s overall
business strategy.

On 26 March 2014, BAPP Ethanol Holdings Limited
("BAPP"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the agreement with an independent
third party, the BAPP has conditionally agreed to sell
all 100% equity interest in BAPP (Northwest) Limited
held by the BAPP, which hold 100% equity interest
of Ningxia West Bright New Resource Technology
Company Limited at the consideration of RMB40
million (“BAPP Disposal”). The Directors considered
that the BAPP Disposal provides a good opportunity
for the Group to improve the financial performance of
the Group. The sale proceeds from the BAPP Disposal
could enhance the Group's working capital position as
well as providing additional capital resources for the
Group to make future investment in potential projects
when opportunity arises. Therefore, the Directors
considered the BAPP Disposal is in line with the
Group's overall business strategy.

H
(i)

(ii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

Memorandum of Understanding

On 12 August 2013, the Company entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding (“MOU") with an
independent third party (“Vendor”) pursuant to which the
Company intended to acquire and the Vendor intended
to sell 100% of the issued share capital of a company
(the "Target”) (”Possible Acquisition”). The Target and its
subsidiary (“Target Group”) are in the process of acquiring a
company incorporated in China which is holding a piece of
multipurpose agricultural land (the “Land”) in the Yinchuan
City of Ningxia Province, China. The Company intended to
acquire the Land for the development of an eco-pasture base.

Pursuant to the MOU, the Vendor and the Company will
negotiate in good faith the terms of the Formal Agreement
for the Possible Acquisition within 6 months after the date
of the MOU. The terms for the formal agreement for the
Possible Acquisition have not yet been finalized at the end
of the 6 months, pending the results of the due diligence
on the Target Group. After negotiation, the Company and
the Vendor agreed that additional time is needed for the
Company to complete its due diligence on the Target Group.
Accordingly, the Company and the Vendor have entered into
an extension agreement on 24 February 2014 to extend the
MOU for 6 months to 23 August 2014 in order to enable the
Company to complete its due diligence on the Target Group.
The Company will make further announcement on the
progress of the Possible Acquisition as and when appropriate.

Business Co-operation

As announced on 28 January 2014, the Group has started
to explore co-operation opportunity with A & ZE & B
ZE R 2 al (CECT-Chinacomm Communications Co.,
Limited*, “"CECT-Chinacomm”), a company incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability.
CECT-Chinacomm and its ultimate beneficial owners are
independent of and not connected with the Company and its
connected persons. CECT-Chinacomm has the development
right in respect of a parcel of land in Beijing Economic and
Technological Development Area and will construct a project
known as Beijing Wireless Broadband Industrial Park on the
parcel of land. An indirect subsidiary of CECT-Chinacomm
is appointed as the operating company of the Project, and
has legally obtained the Land Use Right Certificate, the
Planning Permit and the Construction Land Use Permit.
The co-operation is still in discussion stage and no formal
agreement has been entered into by the parties at the date of
this report. The Board expects that the Company will be able
to join CECT-Chinacomm and its subsidiary to develop the
project for commercial benefits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

On 21 January 2014, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreements with the independent Subscribers
for the subscription of an aggregate 239,032,479
Subscription Shares at the Subscription Price of HK$0.405
per Subscription Share. These transactions represented an
opportunity to raise additional funding for the Group’s
business operation and also helped strengthen the capital
base and financial position for the Group’s future business
developments and broaden the shareholder base of the
Company. Furthermore, the Subscriptions were a preferred
method of fund raising as compared with other equity
fund raising exercises based on time and costs involved.
Gross proceeds from the Subscription were approximately
HK$96.8 million. The net proceeds from the Subscription,
after deducting the expenses payable by the Company were
approximately HK$96.5 million. The proceeds will be used
by the Company for the Group’s business development and
general working capital purposes.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The continuing operations of the Group achieved a revenue
of approximately HK$94.18 million (2012: HK$144.74
million), representing a decrease of 34.93% from last year.
Gross profit for the continuing operations of the Group was
approximately HK$15.84 million (2012: HK$36.95 million).
The loss (net of taxation) from continuing operations was
HK$29.13 million and the loss from discontinued operations
(net of tax) was HK$132.86 million. Loss attributable to
owners of the parent was approximately HK$126.77 million
(2012: HK$277.80 million), representing a decrease of
54.37% over last year. Loss per share for the Year was
HK10.61 cents (2012: HK23.31 cents).

Selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$21.93 million, (2012: HK$30.47 million) representing
a decrease of 28.03% from last year and 23.29% (2012:
21.05%) of the Group’s revenue.

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$19.73
million (2012: HK$43.59 million), representing an decrease of
54.74% from last year.

Finance cost was approximately HK$4.97 million (2012:
HK$1.24 million), representing an increase of 301% over last
year. The increase was due to increase in the loan interest.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Discontinued operations

Although the revenue from the entire ethanol business
segment (including revenue and other revenue) generated
by Harbin China Distillery Company Limited increased
substantially from approximately HK$54.59 million in 2012 to
approximately HK$346.61 million in 2013, the loss from this
discontinued operation, net of tax for the year, excluding the
impairment loss incurred in 2012, increased significantly from
approximately HK$72.33 million in 2012 to approximately
HK$132.86 million for 2013.

Since the Group has signed the sales and purchase
agreements with independent third parties for the Harbin
Disposal and BAPP Disposal on 24 February 2014 and 26
March 2014 respectively, the Group reclassified the entire
ethanol business segment of the Group from subsidiaries
to assets held for sale. The net liabilities directly associated
with these disposal groups were classified as held for sale
amounted to HK$93.62 million. As the Group only held
75% of equity interest in Harbin China Distillery Company
Limited, the amount of net liabilities of Harbin China Distillery
Company Limited shared by the Group as at 31 December
2013 was approximately HK$70.22 million. It is estimated
that the Group will realize significant gain from the Harbin
Disposal and BAPP Disposal for the year ending 31 December
2014.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Throughout the Year, the issued share capital of the
Company comprised 1,195,162,397 shares and there were
no other capital instruments in issue. As at 31 December
2013, the Group had net liability to owners of the parent of
approximately HK$41.19 million (2012: equity attributable
to owners of the parent HK$82.12 million). Net current
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2013 amounted to
approximately HK$86.61 million (2012: HK$179.58 million).
The Group’s unpledged cash and cash equivalents as at
31 December 2013 amounted to approximately HK$25.49
million (2012: HK$8.40 million), which were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Harbin China
Distillery Company Limited held cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$2.83 million for the year ended 31
December 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$136.42 million (2012:
HK$98.29 million). The Group’s borrowings included bank
loans of approximately HK$67.41 million (2012: HK$32.34
million), other borrowings of approximately HK$0.009 million
(2012: HK$3.75 million). Amounts due to related parties of
approximately HK$69.00 million (2012: HK$30.94 million)
and an amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary of approximately HK$31.97 million, which has
been reclassified under liabilities directly associated with the
assets classified as held for sale (2012: HK$31.26 million).
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s unsecured other
borrowings of approximately HK$3.83 million were held
by Harbin China Distillery Company Limited, which was
classified as liabilities directly associated with the assets
classified as held for sale of the Group as at 31 December
2013. Harbin China Distillery Company Limited also held
bank borrowings of approximately HK$92.86 million as at
31 December 2013. Approximately 90.9% of the Group’s
borrowings were denominated in Renminbi with the rest in
Hong Kong dollars. The bank loans, other borrowings and
amounts due to related parties of approximately HK$69.00
million (2012: HK$30.94 million) are charged at fixed interest
rates. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2013, calculated as net debt divided by equity attributable
to owners of the parent plus net debt, was 139.2% (2012:
81.5%).

Having considered the Group’s current unpledged cash
and cash equivalents, bank and other borrowings, banking
facilities and the financial support from shareholders, the
management believes that the Group’s financial resources
are sufficient for its day-to-day operations. The Group did
not use financial instruments for financial hedging purposes
during the Year. The Group’s business transactions, assets
and liabilities are principally denominated in Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollars. Fluctuations in Renminbi may impact
the Group's results and net asset value as the Company's
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars. The Group's treasury policy is to manage its
foreign currency exposure only when its potential financial
impact is material to the Group. The Group will continue to
monitor its foreign exchange position and, if necessary, utilise
hedging tools, if available, to manage its foreign currency
exposure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

CHARGE ON ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group's property,
plant and equipment, leasehold land and bank deposits with
aggregate net book value of approximately HK$96.08 million
(2012: HK$89.5 million) were pledged to banks to secure
the Group’s bank loans and bills payable. As at 31 December
2013, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2012:
Nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately 504
(2012: 541) employees in Hong Kong and the PRC with total
staff costs amounted to approximately HK$36.79 million
(2012: HK$37.46 million). Remuneration of employees is
offered at competitive standards, generally structured with
reference to market terms and individual qualifications.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme and the
purpose of which is to provide incentives to participants for
their contribution to the Group, and to enable the Group to
recruit and retain quality employees to serve the Group on a
long-term basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of
shareholders’ transparency and accountability. It is the belief
of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
that shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) during the
year ended 31 December 2013 as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except
where otherwise stated.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group'’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. Daily operations and execution
are delegated to the management. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(o) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to directors
and employees; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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The executive directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The non-
executive directors provide the Group with a wide range
of expertise and experience. Their participation in Board
meetings bring independent judgment on issues relating
to the Group’s strategy, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process, to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. The independent non-
executive directors ensure that the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered
in an objective manner.

The Board believes that the balance between executive
and non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to
provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as directors in the best interest of the
Company and that the current Board size is adequate for its
present operations.

At 31 December 2013, the Board comprised three executive
directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman and Managing
Director), Mr. Qu Shuncai and Mr. Song Shaohua; one non-
executive director, namely, Mr. Huang Qingxi; and three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. Loke Yu,
Mr. Zhang Yonggen and Mr. Li Xiaofeng. Biographical details
of the directors are set out on pages 30 to 32 of this Annual
Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board at all
time met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The number of independent non-executive directors also
represented at least one-third of the members of the
Board. The Company has received annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-
executive directors and considers them to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

For the review year, the Board members had no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other. Such balanced Board composition was formed to
ensure strong independence exists across the Board.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of directors’ liability.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

During the period from 1 January 2013 to 7 May 2013,
the positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director
of the Company were held by separate individuals so as to
maintain an effective segregation of duties. The Company
regards the role of its Managing Director to be same as that
of chief executive under the CG Code. Mr. Lo Peter was the
Chairman of the Company during the period from 1 January
2013 to 7 May 2013 and provided leadership to the Board
to ensure that the Board works effectively and all important
issues were discussed in a timely manner. Mr. Han Dong was
the Managing Director of the Company during the period
from 1 January 2013 to 7 May 2013 and was responsible for
supervising the implementation of the strategic plans of the
Group’s wine and liquor business.

Mr. Jiang Jianjun was appointed as the Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company with effect from 8 May
2013. Subsequent to Mr. Jiang Jianjun’s appointment, the
Company is not in compliance with code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code which required the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Board believed that such structure
would provide the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and allow the Company’s business operations,
planning and decision making as well as execution of
long term strategies to be carried out more effectively and
efficiently. As disclosed previously in the interim report
for the six months ended 30 June 2013, the Board would
nonetheless review the structure to ensure that the structure
would not impair the balance of power of the Company.
Based on subsequent review, the Board accepted Mr. Jiang
Jianjun’s voluntary resignation as the Managing Director
of the Company on 28 March 2014 and appointed Mr. Li
Jianging as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Jiang Jianjun remains as the Chairman and an Executive
Director. Hence, as from 28 March 2014 the Company has
duly complied with the code provision A.2.1.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The procedures of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid in the articles of association of the
Company. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director are available on the website
of the Company.

In accordance with article 116 of the Company's articles of
association, one-third of the directors, including the non-
executive directors, shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting. The non-executive director
and independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
period of three years.

Article 99 of the Company's articles of association provides
that directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting after their appointment, and shall
be subject to re-election by the shareholders.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy on 22 August
2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company will monitor
the implementation of this policy and will from time to time
review this policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness
of this policy.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee different aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. The most up-to-date terms of reference
of these committees are available on the website of the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has had an Audit Committee since 2001. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's
financial statements, overseeing the Group's financial
reporting and internal control procedures, and making
recommendations to the Board. Meetings of the Audit
Committee shall be held at least twice a year.
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At 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Zhang
Yonggen and Mr. Li Xiaofeng. Dr. Loke Yu is the chairman of
the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there were two
meetings held by the Audit Committee to (i) review with
external auditor the audit plan, the external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance; (ii)
discuss auditing and financial reporting matters including
the review of the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and the unaudited financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2013 with
recommendations to the Board for approval; (iii) review
and make recommendations to the Board the auditor’s re-
appointment and remuneration; and (iv) review the Group’s
internal control system.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy. No individual director is
involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model
under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee
shall be held at least once a year.
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At 31 December 2013, the Remuneration Committee
comprised one executive director, Mr. Jiang Jianjun, and
two independent non-executive directors, Dr. Loke Yu and
Mr. Zhang Yonggen. Dr. Loke Yu is the chairman of the
committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there were two
meetings held by the Remuneration Committee to (i)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the directors and senior management for
year 2013;
Board on the remuneration package of the newly appointed
directors; and (iii) review and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of the resigning directors for their
tenure of office in 2013.

(ii) review and make recommendations to the

Details of the remuneration paid to directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2013 are disclosed in the notes 8 and 9 to
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on nominations,
appointment of directors and Board succession. The
Nomination Committee selects candidates for directorship
with reference to the board diversity policy and the
candidate’s professional knowledge, industry experience,
personal ethics and integrity, and time commitments. During
the selection process, the committee may consider referrals
or engage external recruitment professionals when necessary.
Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least
once a year.

At 31
comprised the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Jiang Jianjun, and
two independent non-executive directors, Dr. Loke Yu and
Mr. Zhang Yonggen. Mr. Jiang Jianjun is the chairman of the

December 2013, the Nomination Committee

committee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, there were three
meetings held by the Nomination Committee to (i) review the
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) nominate
the retiring directors for re-election at the annual general
meeting held on 7 May 2013; (iii) assess the independence
of independent non-executive directors with reference to
the requirements under the Listing Rules; (iv) nominate two
new directors for appointment to the Board; and (v) discuss
and recommend the Board Diversity Policy to the Board for
approval and adoption, and propose amendments to the
committee’s terms of reference.

The directors’ attendance at the meetings held is set out in
the section below.

MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, there were seven Board meetings
held by the directors, four of which were regular Board
meetings to (i) review and discuss the Group’s development
strategies, investment projects and the operational and
financial performance of the Group, and (ii) approve the
annual report for 2012 and the interim report for 2013. The
other three Board meetings were held to consider certain
ad hoc matters. Under the code provision A.1.3 of the
CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should be given of a
regular board meeting to give all directors an opportunity to
attend. During the year ended 31 December 2013, one of
the regular Board meetings was convened with less than 14
days’ notice to enable the Board members to react timely and
make expeditious decision making in respect of transactions
which were of significance to the Group’s business. As a
result, the aforesaid regular Board meeting was held with a
shorter notice period than required with the consent of all
the directors for that time being. The Board will do its best
endeavours to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3
of the CG Code in future. In addition to Board meetings, the
Chairman of the Board met with the non-executive directors
(including the independent non-executive directors) without
the presence of the executive directors.
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The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
minutes of each meeting with appropriate details, which are
available to all directors. Draft minutes are circulated to all
directors for comment and approval as soon as practicable
after each meeting.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain
independent professional advisors if necessary. They also have
unrestricted access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or director arise, the matter is discussed in an
actual meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors with no
conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, all follow the
applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings
for committee meetings.
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Details of directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board
committees meetings and general meetings held for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

REBE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—BLEE" M
BIIVESTCEH BEFLECCRENMREK
evEEHREBROT

Attended/Eligible to attend

HERY/GERLERE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Name of director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Espg ES89E ENZE88E FMZEEEeE REZE8ER LEVN-1
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun @ TEERLO (R -F—=F

(appointed on 15 March 2013) A+ AREZE) 5/5 - 0/0 11 1/1
Mr. Qu Shuncai JRIEA 4 6/7 - - - 22
Mr. Song Shaohua RVERE (R=_F—=F

(appointed on 15 March 2013) ZATHEREZF) 5/5 - - - 1"
Mr. Han Dong BREE(R-F—=F

(retired on 7 May 2013) AAtHRE) 12 - - - 0
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Huang Qingxi HEERE 717 - - - 12
Mr. Lo Peter ® REERAED (R-FE—=F

(resigned on 8 May 2013) HANAFE) 33 - 2 22 22
Mr. Chen Hua BRELE (K-F—=F

(resigned on 15 March 2013) ZATHAFEF) 12 - - - 11
Mr. Kong Hor Fai IBESE (R-F—=%

(resigned on 15 March 2013) ZH+EABF) 02 - - - 11
Independent Non-executive BUIHITEE

Directors
Dr. Loke Yu BEEMEL 717 2 2 33 12
Mr. Zhang Yonggen FRKIREAE 6/7 12 12 23 22
Mr. Li Xiaofeng BEkrE 47 212 - - 072

- The director is not a committee member % & £k ZE &/ S

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIEEEEGR A 7
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Notes:

(a) Mr. Jiang Jianjun was appointed as a member of
Remuneration Committee and the chairman of Nomination
Committee with effect from 8 May 2013.

(b) Mr. Lo Peter ceased to be a member of Remuneration
Committee and the chairman of Nomination Committee with
effect from 8 May 2013.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors,
as equal board members, should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Certain directors were unable to attend the
general meetings, as shown in the last column of above
table, due to their other business engagements.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director is provided with an induction
on the first occasion of his appointment so as to ensure
he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has devised a training
record in order to assist the directors to record the training
they have undertaken and they are asked to provide a
training record to the Company.
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TEERRS

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
training that the directors received for the year ended 31

December 2013 is summarized as follows:

Name of director

REARFBFEZ L EERNEE_T—=
FHA=T—BLFE BRI ZEIHdm

T~

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant
to the business

or directors’ duties

Reading

materials relevant
to the business

or directors’ duties

SHEERERR
EERE
EXENE MEAEEKR
BEE=nE 238§ | EERECEH
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRELA v
(appointed on 15 March 2013) (R=ZF—=F
A+ AHEZE)
Mr. Qu Shuncai JENEA 4 A v
Mr. Song Shaohua ROELE v
(appointed on 15 March 2013) (RZF—=%F
= A+AHEHAEZ(F)
Mr. Han Dong FER A
(retired on 7 May 2013) (RZFE—=%F
A A+ HRE)
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. Huang Qingxi HEBLA v
Mr. Lo Peter KEEfE v
(resigned on 8 May 2013) (R-ZFE—=1F
A H/HEFE)
Mr. Chen Hua PREE ST A4
(resigned on 15 March 2013) (R-ZF—=4F
= A+ AHEF)
Mr. Kong Hor Fai IEEEA
(resigned on 15 March 2013) (R-F—=4F
= A+ HHEF)
Independent Non-executive BUHHITEE
Directors
Dr. Loke Yu BB v v
Mr. Zhang Yonggen SRR A& v
Mr. Li Xiaofeng R k4 v

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBEEE AR A 7
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Under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should
provide a record of the training they received to the issuer.
Mr. Chen Hua, Mr. Kong Hor Fai and Mr. Han Dong, all being
former directors, had not provided a record of the training to
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code on ethics and securities
transactions (the “Code”), which incorporates a code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
of the Listing Rules. Specified employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company are also subject to the compliance with
the Code. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the
Company confirms that the directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced
assessment of the Group's performance and prospects. It
is also responsible for preparing accounts that give a true
and fair view of the Group's financial position on a going-
concern basis and other price-sensitive announcements
and financial disclosures. Management provides the Board
with the relevant information it needs to discharge these
responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor issued by Cheng & Cheng
Limited, the auditor of the Company, with respect to these
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 45 to 47 of this Annual Report.

hY &"—“—\\A
BEAWmE

RIBEEEATUZ TR EALSK 26
EXA2EBEHEEER UERMNEFRE
Z R R B RE - SRR FIT AR TR XA
%%Eﬁo@ﬁ%i»i%ﬁ%i&%%ﬁi
(REH/AEES) REAARAREFEIIR

EENRSFRS
RAARERMN—BBRERFSFRZFA ([5F
Al EREHINEHAEFETESFRINTA
PR AR BN EMARRIE T T
ANEZETEFXINRETARENR
A RREAARNAIRBERNREHRERL
EEREEIMBETTA -KCRABESELR
EEHRE ARREREENEE_T—=F
+ZA=t—HIEFERA—BEETTAMETE
HO%ERI]

EERGRBEMAKRENEE

EXCTRAMAKRENRRLRERANRIER
— &R kBN E -EEEeMBAEREE
WEE MR FHFERRAEEFEMR R
RE U REMRESRN QG BREES
H-EREERNEFERHBETZEREMTH
HEER -

ZAN/NIEP R S Gl - RS GRS s NG F 2
EM MR ERZZBENE EFHRAFREAS
FATA 2B ARBENRE A o

Annual Report 20135 3§ 1

25



26

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREREE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration
paid or payable to the auditor of the Company, Cheng
& Cheng Limited, for the provision of the Group's audit
services and non-audit services amount to HK$750,000 and
HK$80,000 respectively.

During the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company's ex-auditor, Ernst & Young, for the provision of the
Group’s audit services and non-audit services amounted to
HK$Nil and HK$160,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the Group's
assets and shareholders’ interests. The Board conducts regular
reviews of the Group’s internal control system. The Board
assesses the effectiveness of internal controls by considering
reviews performed by the Audit Committee, management
and both internal and external auditors. The Board believes
that the present internal control system is adequate and
effective.

The internal audit department follows a risk-and-control
based approach. The department performs regular financial
and operational reviews of the Group and its subsidiaries, as
well as other reviews as required. Summaries of major audit
findings and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the
Audit Committee. The internal audit department monitors
the follow-up actions agreed upon in response to the Audit
Committee’s recommendations.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIEEEEGR A 7

BEEEN &
REBEEZT—=F+-A=+—HLEFE B
MR FARRZEMEE S MERME
R A E gt R AN B R A R TS KR IR BUR S
2 B % Bl 3#750,0007% 7T 580,000 It ©

RAFE  ENSREMN TARRFMEZEAE L
K& B E TS AT R A AN 5 B R AR BUR TS K 3F
ZERH < B BIZE T8 7T 5% 160,000/8 7T °

AR
ESSARTHFRIFMEMAAIMEIE A
REXAEENEEARRRONE -BEFET
B AEEANRERRBRETRN EFE2
ZHEXRZEYS EEERAIMINEZEED
HEM MY A MEEN AR LT -ES
SREB AT RS IEEE R B HIM A R -

M EAZ BB P BAE A R B S A2 B B AR J70%
ZEPPIE BB AR E L EM B AR 2 B
EETEZ ARERERPTHMER -
ENBEZATERLIESSIE (NF) RS
HEZZESEM WA ZBANFIEBNER
ZESFHZEBERMBE 2 BRETE 2
==



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Chan Kwong
Leung, Eric, who is engaged and appointed by the Company
from an external secretarial services provider. The primary
contact person with the Company Secretary of the Company
is Mr. Chai Chung Wai, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to article 72 of the Company’s articles of
association, any two or more shareholders or any one
shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee) holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request
at the head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 2509, Tower One, Lippo Centre,
89 Queensway, Hong Kong, or the registered office of the
Company at PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands for the attention of the Board
or Company Secretary to convene an extraordinary general
meeting ("EGM").

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrars in Hong Kong and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Board will be asked to convene an EGM by serving sufficient
notice to all the registered shareholders in accordance
with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the
Company’s articles of association. In the event that the
request has been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested.
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If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition,
the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of the Board or Company
Secretary via the followings:

Address : 2509, Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway,
Hong Kong
Fax : (852) 2880 5398

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents for the year ended 31 December
2013.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant
information to shareholders in a timely manner. The
Company also recognises that people other than
shareholders, such as potential investors and the investment
community generally may have an interest in information
about the Company.
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Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to shareholders and
the annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders
to exchange views directly with the Board. The Company
regards the annual general meeting as an important event
and all directors, senior management and external auditor
make an effort to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company to address shareholders’ queries. All the
shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of 20
clear business days' notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company
supports the CG Code’s principle to encourage shareholders’
participation. The Company has also complied with the
requirements concerning voting by poll under the Listing
Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights
of shareholders to demand a poll are included in circulars
to shareholders despatched by the Company and explained
by the chairman of general meeting at the meeting. All
resolutions proposed at general meeting are voted separately.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements
and notices of general meetings, as well as the terms of
reference of Board committees can be downloaded from the
Company's website.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly
by the Company’s management to reflect current regulatory,
community and investor requirements. In particular, the
policy will be updated in response to the changes in internal
structure, legislative, regulatory and market developments.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEREREEERRE

The directors and senior management of the Company as at
the date of this report are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Mr. JIANG lJianjun, aged 44, was appointed as executive
director of the Company in March 2013, and as the chairman
and the managing director of the Company in May 2013.
He resigned as the managing director of the Company on
28 March 2014. He is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He has been engaged in property investment
and management since 1995. He also has experience in
distribution of wine and liquor. Mr. Jiang is concurrently a
committee member of Shenzhen Baoan District of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice president
of Shenzhen Baoan General Chamber of Commerce and
Shenzhen Baoan Shajing Chamber of Commerce.

Mr. QU Shuncai, aged 51, was appointed as executive
director of the Company in June 2012. He is responsible
for the development of the Group’s ethanol business
and animal feed business. Mr. Qu is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He was the director of the
Group's development division. Mr. Qu has been engaged in
trading of wine and liquor, nanotechnology development,
and production and sale of automotive fine chemicals. Mr. Qu
holds a Bachelor of Education degree from Qigihar University.

Mr. SONG Shaohua, aged 51, was appointed as
executive director of the Company in March 2013. He
was the deputy general manager of Hong Kong Polytec
International Company Limited, the general manager of
Hong Kong Polytec Group Shenzhen Head Office and
a director of Shenzhen Huafa Electronics Co., Ltd., a
company currently listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
He has extensive experiences in industrial manufacturing,
property development and asset management. Mr. Song
is concurrently the invited professor of Graduate School
of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. Mr. Song holds a
doctor degree in Economics from Graduate School of Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences.
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Mr. HUANG Qingxi, aged 40, was appointed as non-
executive director of the Company in June 2012. He is
currently the chairman of Hunan Anson Nano-Biotechnology
Company Limited. Mr. Huang has made investments in
biomedical industries since 2004. He is concurrently the
chairman of Hunan Medical Instrument Trade Association, a
standing committee member of Hunan Federation of Industry
and Commerce and the deputy secretary general of United
Front Work Department of Hunan Provincial Committee
Intellectual Friendship Association. Mr. Huang has studied
mathematics at Hunan Normal University.

Dr. LOKE Yu alias LOKE Hoi Lam, aged 64, was appointed
as independent non-executive director of the Company
in June 2005. Dr. Loke has over 38 years of experience in
accounting and auditing for private and public companies,
financial consultancy and corporate management. He holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration
degree from University of South Australia. He is a Fellow of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also an Associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He is currently the company secretary of Minth Group Limited
and serves as an independent non-executive director of
VODone Limited, Matrix Holdings Limited, China Fire Safety
Enterprise Group Limited, Winfair Investment Company
Limited, SCUD Group Limited, Zhong An Real Estate Limited,
Chiho-Tiande Group Limited, Tianjin Development Holdings
Limited and China Household Holdings Limited, companies
currently listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. ZHANG Yonggen, aged 52, was appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company in
May 2011. He is currently a professor of animal nutrition
and feed science in China Northeast Agricultural University
and the academic leader of ruminant nutrition and feed
science. Mr. Zhang is concurrently a scientist in national
dairy products industry technology system, council member
of Dairy Association of China, standing council member of
China Institute of Animal Husbandry and Veterinary Cattle
Chapter, standing council member of Heilongjiang Animal
Husbandry and Veterinary Institute, member of editorial
board of journals of China Cattle Genetic Resources and
Heilongjiang Animal Husbandry and Veterinary Medicine, and
the invited reviewers for the journals of Animal Nutrition and
Agricultural Sciences in China. He has been long engaged
in teaching of cattle production and ruminant nutrition,
researching and feed resources development and utilisation.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Department of Animal Husbandry
of China Northeast Agricultural University, and also holds a
master degree in agriculture and a doctor degree in ruminant
nutrition science from the same university.
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EEREREEERRE

Mr. LI Xiaofeng, aged 36, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company in December 2012.
He is currently a supervisor of the credit department of
Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank Shajing branch. Mr. Li has
been engaged in financial services industry since 1998. Mr. Li
graduated from Department of Finance of Jinan University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Jianging, aged 51, was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 28 March 2014. He
has also been appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 18 April 2014. Mr. Li is currently
the president of Dongguan ZhiRui Industrial Investment
Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has over 20 years of experience in the
operation and management of financial institutions and
banks. He graduated from Beijing School of Economics and
Management majoring in Economy Administration Specialty,
and also holds a Degree of Finance from Southwestern
University of Finance And Economics and an Executive Master
of Business Administration from Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. CHAI Chung Wai, aged 47, is the chief financial officer
of the Company. He joined the Group in May 2013. Mr. Chai
obtained his master degree of Accounting in 2004 and of
Business Administration in 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. Chai has extensive experience of over 20 years in the
accounting and financial field in various listed companies in
Hong Kong.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 6 February 2013
and the granting of the certificate of change of name by the
Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands on 7 February
2013, the English name of the Company was changed
from “BIO-DYNAMIC GROUP LIMITED” to “Sino Distillery
Group Limited” and the Chinese name of the Company was
changed from "£¥ &) HEEERAR" to "/ EEEEE
BB AR with effect from 7 February 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 48 to
159.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set
out on page 160. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 30 and 31
to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$13,795,000,
representing the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$718,569,000 less the accumulated losses
as at 31 December 2013 of approximately HK$704,774,000.
Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (as amended) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium account may also be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers and purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 47.1% and 67.1%, of the total
sales and total purchases for the year, respectively. The
largest sales from the customer and the purchases from the
largest supplier are 26.6% and 24.6% respectively. None
of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
Capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Jianjun (appointed on 15 March 2013)
Mr. Qu Shuncai

Mr. Song Shaohua (appointed on 15 March 2013)

Mr. Han Dong (retired on 7 May 2013)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Huang Qingxi
Mr. Lo Peter (resigned on 8 May 2013)

Mr. Chen Hua (resigned on 15 March 2013)

Mr. Kong Hor Fai (resigned on 15 March 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu

Mr. Zhang Yonggen

Mr. Li Xiaofeng

Subsequent to the reporting year, on 28 March 2014, Mr. Li
Jianging and Mr. Jiang Jiancheng were appointed as executive
directors of the Company with effect from 18 April 2014.

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Qu Shuncai, Mr. Huang Qingxi and Mr. Li
Xiaofeng will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors are appointed for a period of three years.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Li Jianging and Mr. Jiang Jiancheng will retire
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Directors appointed as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting after their appointment, and shall
be subject to re-election by the shareholders under article 99
of the Company’s article of association.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors and senior management
of the Company are set out on pages 30 to 32 of this Annual
Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company'’s board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

There was no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder of any
of its subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions
of the directors in the share capital and underlying shares
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers, were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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RERXAEBRZER:

Number of shares held,

capacity and nature of interest

FEROEE BORERME

Percentage of

Directly the Company'’s
beneficially Through issued share
Name of director owned spouse Total capital
EARRTF
BERITREAZ
EEnE ERERRA EREB me BOL
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TEERE 105,728,000 2,920,000 108,648,000 9.09
Mr. Qu Shuncai JENEA % & 3,680,000 - 3,680,000 0.31
109,408,000 2,920,000 112,328,000 9.40

Long positions in share options of the Company: RELFEREZFE:
Number of

Name of director

options directly
beneficially owned

BEEERERZ

ESpE BRERE
Mr. Qu Shuncai JENEA St 4,500,000
Dr. Loke Yu BEBMIE L 150,000
Mr. Zhang Yonggen SRk AR A& 200,000
4,850,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of
the directors had registered an interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers.
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=1t B ZEFMERARQE A A HEE
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ERPIFE3S2EA TR HRE EMEITA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2013, the following interests of 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREMATRROREBERSG
Ry
RZB—=F+-A=+—H U TMMEERRTA
EBITHRAS% A LM B R sk AR A
RIEEFES M GROIE36EMFENERE
SO A

Long positions: Ha:
Percentage of
Number of the Company's
Capacity and ordinary issued share
Name nature of interest shares held capital
EEAR SR
wE/ LB B RERME FELZERYE BAZBDH
Chen Hua Interest of controlled corporations 179,118,000@ 14.99
PR & XEGEE R
Able Turbo Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 102,945,737 8.61
ERBAA
Interest of a controlled corporation 76,172,263 6.37
XEREE R
China Food and Beverage Group Limited Beneficial owner 76,172,263 6.37
ERBAA
Li Zhuoxun Beneficial owner 2,920,000 0.24
) ERBEAA
Interest of spouse 105,728,000© 8.85
[
Liang Kui Di Beneficial owner 64,700,000 5.41
RER ExEEA
Sun Lian Beneficial owner 61,348,000 5.13
T ERBAA
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Notes:

The shares are held by Able Turbo Enterprises Limited as to
102,945,737 shares and China Food and Beverage Group
Limited as to 76,172,263 shares. Able Turbo Enterprises
Limited and China Food and Beverage Group Limited are
owned by Mr. Chen Hua as to 60.31% directly and 100%
indirectly, respectively.

The shares are held by China Food and Beverage Group
Limited, which is wholly owned by Able Turbo Enterprises
Limited.

The shares are held by Mr. Jiang Jianjun, the spouse of Ms. Li
Zhuoxun.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person,
other than the directors of the Company, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to, and
continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group.
Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the
financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company'’s
share options outstanding during the year:

fB IR T &

ARFRE—E

BT El ([%At8l)) B/

RAEERBEESAKEMERERRFES D

{RAE A SR ) an pE 2B M 2B E - 45

— SRR BRI 3 -

82

TR E N RITER AR 7 BAIR S

Number of share options
BRE%A
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At grant of price of
1 January during during during 31 December share Exercise period share
Name or category of participant 2013 the year the year the year 2013 options®  of share options options®
R=8-=%
R=8-=% t=A BRE BRE
SaERAAER -A-H EREH ERTHR FREN =+-H ik B8 BRETES k@Y
HKS per share
SRET
Directors £%
Mr. Qu Shuncai 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000 13-9-10 13-9-11-12-9-14 0.83
RIES %4 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000 13-9-10 13-9-12-12-9-15 0.83
4,500,000 - - - 4,500,000
Dr. Loke Yu 50,000 - - - 50,000 26-4-10 26-4-12 - 25-4-15 0.73
321k 50,000 - - - 50,000 13610 13-9-11-12:9-14 0.83
50,000 - - N 50,000 13-9-10 13-9-12-12-9-15 0.83
150,000 - - N 150,000
Mr. Zhang Yonggen 100,000 = - - 100,000 4-5-11 4-5-12-3-5-15 1.152
FABEE 100,000 - - - 100,000 4511 4-5-13-3-5-16 1152
200,000 - - - 200,000
4,850,000 - - - 4,850,000
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Number of share options
EREYA
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At grant of price of
1 January during during during 31 December share Exercise period share
Name or category of participant 2013 the year the year the year 2013 options®  of share options options®
R-8-=%
R=B-=% +=A BB BRI
SREEEAER -B-8 ERRH FRTE FRAN =t+-H B AHe BRETRE k@Y
HKS per share
BRET
Ex-directors® 5 £
Mr. Lo Peter (Resigned on 8 May 2013) 840,000 - - (840,000) - 26-4-10 26-4-11 - 25-4-14 0.73
BEERE(R-E—=FRA/HEH) 840,000 - - (840,000) - 26-4-10 26412 - 254-15 073
1,000,000 - - (1,000,000 - 13-9-10 13-9-11-12-9-14 0.83
1,000,000 - - (1,000,000 - 13-9-10 13-9-12-12-9-15 0.83
3,680,000 - - (3,680,000 -
Mr. Han Dong (Retired on 7 May 2013) 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000 - 10-10-11 10-10-12 - 9-10-15 0.66
BRAE (R-F-ZFRA+HAESF) 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - 101011 10-10-13-9-10-16 0.66
10,000,000 - - (10,000,000) -
Mr. Sun David Lee (Resigned on 1 December 2012) 340,000 - - (340,000) - 26-4-10 26-4-11 - 25-4-14 0.73
RmBRE (R=F-—F+-A-AEHF) 340,000 - - (340,000) - 26410 26412 - 254-15 0.73
680,000 - - (680,000) -
Mr. Yeung Ting-Lap Derek Emory 50,000 - - (50,000) - 26-4-10 26-4-11 - 25-4-14 0.73
(Resigned on 1 December 2012) 50,000 - - (50,000) - 26-4-10 26412 - 25-4-15 073
BRUKE (REF-ZF+=A-HEH) 50,000 - - (50,000) - 13-910  13-911-12:9-14 0.83
50,000 - - (50,000) - 13-9-10 13-9-12-12-9-15 0.83
200,000 - - (200,000) -
Mr. Zuchowski Sam (Resigned on 1 December 2012) 50,000 - - (50,000) - 26-4-10 26-4-11 - 25-4-14 0.73
Zuchowski Sam%t & 50,000 - - (50,000 - 26-4-10 26-4-12 - 25-4-15 0.73
(R=F-—§F+=f—-AEH) 50,000 - - (50,000) - 13990 13-911-12:9-14 0.83
50,000 - - (50,000) - 13-9-10 13-9-12 - 12:9-15 0.83
200,000 - - (200,000) -
14,760,000 - - (14,760,000) -

N
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Number of share options
EREYA
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At grant of price of
1 January during during during 31 December share Exercise period share
Name or category of participant 2013 the year the year the year 2013 options®  of share options options®
R-8-=%
R=2-=% t=A BRE BRE
SRELERARR -A-H ERRH ERfTR FREN =t+-H RLiAge BRETEH TEEY
HKS per share
BRET
Other employees EftiES
In aggreqate % 340,000 - - (340,000) - 26-4-10  26-4-11-25-4-14 0.73
340,000 - - (340,000) - 26-4-10 26-4-12 - 25-4-15 0.73
2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 12-7-10 12-7-11-11-7-14 0.62
2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 12-7-10 12-7-12-11-7-15 0.62
2,750,000 - - (250,000) 2,500,000 13-9-10 13-9-11-12-9-14 0.83
2,750,000 - - (250,000) 2,500,000 13-9-10 13-9-12-12-9-15 0.83
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 10-10-11 10-10-12-9-10-15 0.66
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 10-10-11  10-10-13-9-10-16 0.66
7,000,000 - - (500,000 6,500,000 31-10-12  31-10-13-30-10-16 0.694
7,000,000 - - (500,000 6,500,000 31-10-12 31-10-14-30-10-17 0.694
35,180,000 - - (2,180,000 33,000,000
Consultants &
In aggregate % 4,750,000 - - - 4,750,000 13-9-10 13-9-11-12-9-14 0.83
4,750,000 - - - 4,750,000 13-9-10 13-9-12-12-9-15 0.83
9,500,000 - - - 9,500,000
64,290,000 - - (16,940,000) 47,350,000

Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

(a) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.
(b) The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

() Mr. Lo Peter, Mr. Han Dong, Mr. Sun David Lee, Mr. Yeung
Ting-Lap Derek Emory and Mr. Zuchowski Sam resigned/
retired as directors of the Company. According to the
Scheme, the share options granted to them may be exercised
within three months of the date of resignation/retirement.
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No share option was granted during the year ended
31 December 2013. The Group recognised a share
option expense of approximately HK$5,100,000 (2012:
HK$9,373,000) during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of
the directors or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of the connected transactions are disclosed in note 37
to the financial statements.

During the vyear, the Group's bank loan of HK$3,816,000
(2012: HK$3,732,000) was secured by a property held
by Guangzhou TianTian Friendship Co., Ltd., a company
under significant influence of a predecessor director of the
Company.

The Group's bank loan of HK$63,594,000 (2012: Nil) was
secured by properties held by Linxianghuayin Properties
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“ER/RZER & ¥
WEEREBRAT"), a related party of the Group, and
guaranteed by Mr. Jiang Jianjun, a director of the Group,
Linxianghuayin Properties Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd. and Harbin China Distillery Co., Ltd.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

At 31 December 2013, none of the directors was interested
in any business, apart from the Group's business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young, who had acted as the auditor of the
Company in the preceding years, resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 14 January 2014 and Cheng &
Cheng Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 14 January 2014 to fill the casual vacancy so
arising.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 have been audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited who will
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment

at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Jianjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Wmom & F MOF OB A W A A

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of SINO DISTILLERY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
SINO DISTILLERY GROUP LIMITED (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
48 to 159, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
B RE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group's
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to
note 2.1 in the consolidated financial statements which
indicates that the Group incurred a consolidated net loss
of HK$161,989,000 during the year ended 31 December
2013, and, as at that date, the Group’s consolidated
current liabilities exceeded its consolidated current assets by
HK$86,605,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Cheng & Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shek Chi
Practising Certificate number P05540

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREEREMEZEBARE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+-A=+-ALEE

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
(Restated)
(FeE5)
Continuing operations BEREXRK
Revenue W A 5 94,176 144,738
Cost of sales fHE AN (78,337) (107,789)
Gross profit EF 15,839 36,949
Other income and gains E AU A R Uz 5 2,261 3,581
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERX (21,926) (30,470)
Administrative expenses TR X (19,734) (43,585)
Other expenses HEMFEx 6 - (116,177)
Finance costs BhE R A 7 (4,971) (1,238)
Share of loss of an associate DEEE QA EE (201) (120)
Loss before tax M AT E 1B 6 (28,732) (151,060)
Income tax (expenses)/credit s (AX) B 10 (395) 12,928
Loss from continuing operations HECEEBER (29,127) (138,132)
Discontinued operations RIEREHERK
Loss from discontinued operations, RIMRREEBERE
net of tax (B®iR) 24 (132,862) (183,526)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEZEIE (161,989) (321,658)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wz
ltem that may be reclassified HigrlgeEFHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: B=m2IEE -
Exchange differences arising on BEBIINRBEEZ
translation of foreign operations PE W, = %8 (67) 498
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ A& E 2 HEEBERE (162,056) (321,160)
Loss attributable to: TF| L Es 18 -
Owners of the parent ISE/NCIEZZ =N 1 (126,770) (277,800)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B = (35.219) (43,858)
(161,989) (321,658)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOMIE
HmEREREMEEBAREK

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE—_Z—=F+t-_A=t+—BILFE

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FET
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Total comprehensive loss THEGEMmEIBARE:
attributable to:
Owners of the parent BRRHEAA 11 (128,409) (277,253)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M (33,647) (43,907)
(162,056) (321,160)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BAREBREREA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY EBiESRER
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted = VINNE: 13
From continuing and REFER
discontinued operations BRP IR TS HK(10.61) cents Bl HK(23.31) cents L
From continuing operations RERERKEER HK(2.24) cents &1L HK(11.64) cents 74l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

me Bk RE
31 December 2013
—E—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5% FET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB K& 14 18,982 236,693
Prepaid land lease payments B A 15 - 32,170
Goodwill EES 16 468 -
Other intangible assets Hi |y A& 17 2,620 12,140
Investment in an associate NN & 19 6,200 3,612
Total non-current assets FnBEELE 28,270 284,615
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 59,348 129,159
Trade and bills receivables FEH&‘”%EE TPNELH 21 4,630 5,973
Prepayments, deposits and TE FRIE - Tﬁ’i\&
other receivables Hﬁﬂfllﬁl 18 22 80,645 44,843
Due from related parties JE Uy Eﬁ@)\i?ﬁ(lﬁ 37 15,310 10,238
Pledged deposits [ELECRES N 23 7,784 37,317
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReFEY 23 25,487 8,398
193,204 235,928
Assets of disposal groups classified DRERFHEHEZHEAR
as held for sale il =93 24 339,125 -
Total current assets MENEERE 532,329 235,928
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREEE
Trade and bills payables ENES ,AIE&KTF 25 28,401 182,205
Other payables and accruals HiENRENESTER 26 14,642 128,132
Interest-bearing bank and RITREMETEEE
other borrowings 27 67,419 36,087
Due to related parties FEA BAE A L FIE 37 68,996 30,939
Due to a non-controlling e — BB /B A B FEIE AR
shareholder of a subsidiary % 3R F A 37 = 31,263
Tax payable JE A~ 758 18 6,736 6,886
186,194 415,512
Liabilities directly associated with HYBRBFELEZ
the assets classified as held for sale ﬁFE&ﬁEQZﬁ%\ 24 432,740 -
Total current liabilities mENBERTE 618,934 415,512
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEEFE (86,605) (179,584)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERTBEE
LIABILITIES (58,335) 105,031
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 28 107 120
Deferred income PRI YA 29 = 12,097
Total non-current liabilities EREBBERTE 107 12217
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) /EEFE (58,442) 92,814
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

me B RE
31 December 2013
—E—=F+_"A=+—H

2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s TET FHET
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of FARERA
the parent BihfEm
Issued capital BEHITHRA 30 119,516 119,516
Reserves e 32(a) (160,705) (37,396)
(41,189) 82,120
Non-controlling interests FEERERS (17,253) 10,694
Total equity R B EE (58,442) 92,814
Jiang Jianjun TEE Qu Shuncai JE V& 7
Director EF Director o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

Year ended 31 December 2013

BE—2-=F+-A=+—ALFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAAREARE
Share Share Exchange Non-
Issued premium option Merger fluctuation  Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total equity
EXKD
BRIRE BHEEE BRERE AREE i RithE it FRRER | $:5:4:1
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FAL AT FAT FAL FAT FAL FET FAL FART
At 1 January 2012 R-B-—%-f-8 119,064 712,926 21872 (535) 41432 (546,041) 348,718 54,601 403,319
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (277,800) (277,800) (43,858) (321,658)
Other comprehensive FEEMZE
income(loss) for the year: WA/ (B8):
Exchange differences on translation  ;§5ME i ENE)
of foreign operations EXZEE - - - 547 - 547 (49) 498
Total comprehensive loss FE2AFEER
for the year - - - - 547 (277,800 (277,253) (43,907) (321,160)
Issue of shares 1R 30 452 5,643 (43813) - - 1282 - 1282
Equity-settled share option REEEBRERH
arrangements 31 - - 9,373 - - 9373 - 9373
Transfer of share option reserve upon BB X
the lapse of share options ARREREER - - (4,043) - 4,043 - - -
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-ZF
+-zA=t+-8 119,516 718,569* 22,389* (535)* 41,979* (819,798)* 82,120 10,694 92,814
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%-F— 119,516 718,569 22,389 (535) 41,979 (819,798) 82,120 10,694 92,814
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (126,770) (126,770) (35,219) (161,989)
Other comprehensive FEENZE
income/(loss) for the year: KA/ (BB :
Exchange differences on translation  ESME&TEEIN)
of foreign operations ERER - - - - (1,639) - (1,639) 1,572 (67)
Total comprehensive loss FRAAFEER
for the year - - - - (1,639) (126,770) (128,409) (33,647) (162,056)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—-EHBAR - - - - - - - 5,700 5,700
Equity-settled share option REEERREZH
arrangements 31 - - 5,100 - - - 5,100 - 5,100
Transfer of share option reserve upon 78RR 1 5 i
the lapse of share options ARREREER - - (7,539) - - 7,539 - - -
At 31 December 2013
119,516 718,569* 19,950% (535)* 40,340% (939,029)* (41,189) (17,253) (58,442)
* These reserve accounts comprise the negative consolidated * ZERBRBENEREMBRAR CEBEE

reserves of HK$160,705,000 (2012: negative consolidated
reserves of HK$37,396,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BERERER

Year ended 31 December 2013

HE_T—=F+"_HA=1+—HILFE

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETPELENRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax bR B A BT 18
From continuing operations RERBEREERK (28,732) (151,060)
From a discontinued operation RERIEEEHET (132,862) (183,526)
Adjustments for: AT HHE:
Finance costs R E B AN 7 12,466 7,052
Share of loss of an associate DREE N FEE 201 120
Interest income FEHA 5 (1,202) (95)
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE - BERZE
property, plant and equipment IH B B 18 6 665 46
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARZER 34 - 3,367
Depreciation e 14 31,398 28,199
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEf L AH & B 5H
payments 15 1,076 1,081
Amortisation of other intangible assets i & i & = ## $5 17 532 10,314
Amortisation of deferred income I A T N 8 SE 29 (510) (498)
Impairment of property, plant and M- BB KEERE
equipment 14 - 106,475
Impairment of goodwill EESAE 16 - 4,073
Impairment of other intangible assets - {th £ 2 & E il (B 17 - 116,829
Provision for inventories FERE 6 19,325 2,763
Provision for other receivables Hh e WO IR B 6 - 7,084
Equity settled share option expense IRiEEE BRER 31 5,100 9,373
(92,543) (38,403)
Increase in inventories FEEM (10,378) (35,170)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills EWE ZERRERE
receivables (3gm),/m (9,777) 9,231
Increase in prepayments, deposits and B FIE & &
other receivables Hh & WK IE S N (47,069) (327)
Increase in trade payables FETE 5 sRIEIE AN 62,639 42,538
Increase in other payables and accruals £ i & <t 7718 2 fE 5+ & 5
20 17,899 41,606
Cash (used in)/generated from RESEE) (PR A
operations He (79,229) 19,475
Tax paid ERHIE (410) (1,455)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2013

HE_T—=F+"_HA=1T—HILFE

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FTET FHT

Net cash flows (used in)/from EEE) (BTA) g

operating activities BemeEF8 (79,639) 18,020
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHELENRESRE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received 21 F 1,202 95
Purchases of items of property, plant BEMXE WENLEEER

and equipment (6,159) (46,948)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  BEKERHIER

property, plant and equipment Fri5 5838 617 266
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition UWEEHB AR EL 2

of a subsidiary Bemnd F58 33 (6,296) -
Acquisition of an associate Uy B B N A 19 = (3,732)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & i & A &) FT 15 5118 34 - 947
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposit B KR 1F 7R L, (18 0) 29,533 (9,899)
Increase in other receivables HAh & YR IE 2 38 0N - (1,141)
Increase in amounts due from related & U BE3E A £ 7K18 2 # N

parties (9,091) (9,789)
Increase in loans advanced to an AT -EBERRER

associate Z g hn (2,709) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & & /&8T5, (FTF)

activities W MEFH 7,097 (70,201)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REITHELENRASRE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS FIE 30 - 1,282
New bank and other borrowings FIRTTREMEE 154,732 32,871
Repayment of bank and other BERITREMEE

borrowings (32,705) (66,563)
Decrease in other payables H At & < RIE R - (2,614)
Increase in amounts due to related FEAHREE A T3R8 2 180

parties 41,424 12,832
(Decrease)/increase in bills payable EREEZ ORd) /1N (55,174) 74,634
Interest paid B F A (12,466) (6,135)
Net cash flows from financing activities B EEBFIERERE

e -E 95,811 46,307
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2013

HE_T—=F+_A=1+—HIEFE

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRESEEYEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OR) 2% 23,269 (5,874)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYINBRe LB SEY
beginning of year 8,398 18,216
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEE[E R B 5o B FFE
changes, net (3.351) (3,944)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNEERREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 28,316 8,398
ANALYSIS OF BALNCES OF CASH ReRBESEEYER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS oA
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RirE M BRRERES 2
in the consolidated statement of BekReEEY
financial position 23 25,487 8,398
Cash and cash equivalents attributable IERREEBREGRE R
to a discontinued operation ReEEY 24 2,829 -
Cash and cash equivalents as RiEeHeRERENNZ
stated in the consolidated statement HekReEED
of cash flows 28,316 8,398
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Bt 7 AR 3=
31 December 2013
R-T-=%+-A=1-H

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FExT FAETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B MR 49 62
Interests in subsidiaries AT A B A RE 2 18 167,529 167,188
Total non-current assets ERBEELRT 167,578 167,250
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRHIE RE K

other receivables H b fE {31018 22 958 1,675
Due from a related party JEW — 2 B A T RKIB 37 - 2,100
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReFEY 23 20 1,372
Total current assets MENEEARTE 978 5,147
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBERE
Due to related parties FETRAE A T FRIE 37 12,410 11,550
Accruals EEtER 26 2,876 2,166
Interest-bearing bank and RITREMETEBE

other borrowings 27 9 -
Total current liabilities mEBERTE 15,295 13,716
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (14,317) (8,569)
Net assets BEFE 153,261 158,681
EQUITY s
Issued capital BT 30 119,516 119,516
Reserves i 32(b) 33,745 39,165
Total equity kL] 153,261 158,681

Jiang Jianjun IRE Qu Shuncai JE JiE A
Director o Director -
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sino Distillery Group Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business is
2509, Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
18 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

At 31 December 2013, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$86,605,000, inclusive of bank and
other borrowings and other payables and accruals of
HK$67,419,000 and HK$14,642,000, respectively,
which were due for repayment or renewal within the
next 12 months. The Group incurred a consolidated
loss of HK$161,989,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013.

In order to strengthen the capital base of the Group
and to improve the Group’s financial position,
immediate liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise
to sustain the Group as a going concern, Able Turbo
Enterprises Limited, Mr. Jiang Jianjun and King Wei
Group (China) Investment Development Limited, all of
which are shareholders of the Company, have agreed
to jointly and severally provided continuous financial
support to the Group.

Furthermore, the directors intend to negotiate for the
deferral of repayment or renewal of the other payables
and bank and other borrowings when they fall due.

In light of the above, the directors are satisfied that
the Group will be able to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the foreseeable future,
and are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

2.1

B RS R AR M A

31 December 2013
—E-—=%+=-A=+—H
NEER
FEEBEAREEERAA A —HEREE
SEMA 2 BR AR AR R EEMH
i APO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands ° &
DEEMB AT A SEEIRNEHR L
1E2509% ©

ARBIR—HEREZRAR EMBR
A EBXBEN P HRERME18

2HEE
RZFE—=F+ZA=+—H &&H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
and to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is

attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance.
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2.2

2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which
are effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2013:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2009 - 2011 cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of HKFRSs
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Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

- Government Loans

Financial instruments: Disclosures
- Offsetting financial assets and

financial liabilities

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosure

of interests in other entities:

Transition guidance
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g E

31 December 2013

—F-=Ft+-A=+-~

2.3 ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Amendments to HKAS 1

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate financial statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in associates and joint

ventures

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20 Stripping costs in the production

phase of a surface mine
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impact of the adoption of other
new or amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual improvements
to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains
amendments to five standards with consequential
amendments to other standards and interpretations.
The adoption of the amendments does not have an
impact on these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
purpose entities. It introduces a single control
model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has
power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the
ability to use its power to affect the amount of those
returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee.
The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(continued)
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all
the disclosure requirements relevant to an entity's
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive
than those previously required by the respective
standards.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement
guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure
requirements about fair value measurements for both
financial instruments and non-financial instruments.
The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material
impact on the fair value measurements of the Group'’s
assets and liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements - Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never
be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of
other comprehensive income in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
these consolidated financial statements has been
modified accordingly. In addition, the Group has
chosen to use the new titles “statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income” as introduced
by the amendments in these consolidated financial
statements.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(continued)
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011), Employee benefits

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) includes a number of
amendments that range from fundamental changes
to simple clarifications and re-wording. The revised
standard introduces significant changes in the
accounting for defined benefit pension plans including
removing the choice to defer the recognition of
actuarial gains and losses. Other changes include
modifications to the timing of recognition for
termination benefits, the classification of short-term
employee benefits and disclosures of defined benefit
plans. As the Group does not have any defined benefit
plan or employee termination plan and the Group
does not have any significant employee benefits
that are expected to be settled for more than twelve
months after the reporting period, the adoption of
the revised standard has had no effect on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

24

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and

HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-INT 21

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle*

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle?

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
and transition disclosures®

Investment entities’

Financial instruments

Regulatory deferral accounts®

Defined benefit plans: employee
contributions?

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities’

Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets'

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting’

Levies'
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! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014, with earlier application permitted.
2 Available for application — the mandatory effective

date will be determined when the outstanding
phases of HKFRS 9 are finalized.

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014, with limited exceptions.

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these new standards and
amendments to standards and is not yet in a position
to state whether they will have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence.

The Group's investment in an associate is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses.

24
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associate is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in
an associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of an associate
is included as part of the Group’s investment in an
associate and is not individually tested for impairment.

The result of an associate is included in the
consolidated income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Group’s
investment in an associate is treated as non-current
assets and is stated at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If
the contingent consideration is not within the scope
of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination,
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

irrespective of whether other

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets, goodwill and
non-current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR ERME

31 December 2013
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third

entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
and

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

B RS R AR M A

31 December 2013
—E-—=F+=-A=1+—H

2.5 ig%ﬁiﬂz mg (nlﬁ)

BEAL (&)
(b) (&)
() ZEBAASENEASE
EEHEBAREERAR
S H R KA

m

(vi) RERR@MEEAZ
SHERHES] &

(viiy  (a)(i)PT¥E 8 A ¥ 7%
FEERFENLR
GHEREAR)ER
ABHREF—HKE -

7
T
%

i

;% wnm}
e 1

mp R

HE

ME- BERKBNFTE

WME BB ERE (ERTRERIN TR
FRAMER R REHTE R ERBER
SRR MR BB RREERBKAEIE
HBEEREASCZBEEESEREN
NG BERE FG R 2 B ERT
DN

ME BEMRREBHARAEFRES
LR DI E RIREER - —fRIN%
ERXEL 2 BERBRARE A -
ENAERERFER T KA RN
MXRNEENREBEAMREESR
%ZMW%J*%& RBEE BB DA
DEREBE MAKE/BZEHRNERR
BUEE URESERAERFHE
MHERTRITE -

Annual Report 20134 35

%l




72

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% R Y o

31 December 2013
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3%-5%

6%-32%

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 33%

10%-25%

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and machinery and other fixed assets under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing cost on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Technologies

Purchased technologies are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 30
years.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 to 30 years.

Customer base

Customer base is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over
its estimated useful life of 20 years.

Distribution rights

Distribution rights are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over the term of the distribution agreement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations
0] Non-current assets held for sale
A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group)
is available for sale in its present condition.
A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-
current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the Group
and the company are deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits and financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures). These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in note 2.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations (continued)

(i)

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
Impairment losses on initial classification as held
for sale, and on subsequent remeasurement
while held for sale, are recognised in profit or
loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified
as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-
current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above) if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
on the face of the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets
or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 2 Y o

31 December 2013
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIEEEEGR A 7

2.5

FTESTHBEBE (&)

KEle
REEMBREZEAED D& KRR
HBEARBEZHLY B REEHEE-
EAKEASLAAR KAEBEREBELE
MELHZBEERIEIFRBDEE £
REBE TR Z BN BEOHANRE
BORRT ARATRER A - & AN 5 B A AdE
AR EREHETEREN ZEERNE
KB A B AROR I A R A FORR

EHE 2 FAR i & N RS AR
AIER - W EHBRBARRPIABELRE
ML FHIRER

RERHMEMEE
g 0 e

B ENFEIRBEEANEHE
B D BREBERSRAFEIRN
TREE B SEYRIRIA K AT
ETRRE AEFID /EEIEBERS
MR TAMSTAETE (AEA) - K
SERVTHERCREERSBEEED
B-oREERNRERRUARFER
RBRAGE AR FETEF AR

BN BEERIN -
FMTETHESENERMEERNK S A

(AR EEAGFRBEEXLEZEENH
H) R - ENEERENTGREXE
Pl—RRENHRAXNEENETRHE

EEE-



2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement of loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in other income and gains in the income statement.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement in financial costs for loans and in
other expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7

2.5

TESTHBEBE (&)

RIEEIEHEE (H)

EAKECEEEMNMZBEEEMSR
ERENENKCFI L —HENL T
S HERT MMREEERR KB R H
BE -HETEZRNREZAEEN
BARER O Ak N [ ¥R - B3 S R E% IR
BEMNEZEHE ZREEREASERN
BEMNFHES2EMBERAR -ELREBER
T AKETEANBEAG DEEN
BENMEBEERRRASEDREN
A REENELETE -

FESEENCEREEFLNRSE
WiZZIREENRREENMAEBE XA
EENRESRBELR (AREERE) 5

o

g

il

ERMEERME
AEBREREMRIEEEAETERE
BRA-RTHEES —HEMEED
BRE-HEERNEEREREERE
EHN—REASZREHFERFEFTERE
PR (—RDZEAN [BIEEMF]) - Mk
RAEREMHHZERZATHEEN
AAARRBE S REFTEKN R BRER it
Bt AR ZEEREESRER
BAE O RERENBFE R —ABR
AIEE bR B AN 2 - 2 {93k RBEME
BANBHAE REAAIREWESETT
HM s EH AR AABEREBINE
BRETNERAKRESRELRAEN
A GIAR R GRER B B3k 3 EE 4
MR AR -



2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to other expenses in the income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills
and other payables, amounts due to related parties,
an amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary and interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% R Y o

31 Dec

Sino Dis

ember 2013
=F+=-A=+—H
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
traded in active markets is determined by reference
to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference
to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and option pricing models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to the consolidated income
statement over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold; and

(b)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

(0 other income not stated above is recognised
whenever received or receivable.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the operations of the Group. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 31 to the financial
statements.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control
of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of accumulated losses within
the equity section of the consolidated statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or transaction of monetary items are
recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currency of subsidiaries in Mainland
China is Renminbi (“RMB”). As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries in Mainland China
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 %5 R & B =

31 December 2013
—E—=F+_"A=+—H
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in

the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2013 was HK$468,000 (2012: Nil), as
goodwill was arising from acquisition of a subsidiary
during the year. Further details are given in note 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is an indication that property,
plant and equipment may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimate
of the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment. The recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment is the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. No impairment of property, plant and
equipment (2012: HK$106,475,000) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income during the year. The
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2013 was HK$18,982,000 (2012:
HK$236,693,000). Further details are given in note 14.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation charges for its intangible
assets other than goodwill. This estimate is based on
the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset or the
contractual or other legal rights associated with the
assets. The Group will revise the amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
where the useful life is different to that previously
estimated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 %5 R & B =

31 December 2013

—E—=%+=A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Equity-settled share option expense

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions. The cost of these equity-
settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted, using assumptions including expected
volatility, dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate.
Such cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity

instruments that will ultimately vest.

Provision for inventories

Provision for inventories is made based on the
assessment of net realisable value. Estimates of net
realisable value are based on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
amount of provision/reversal of provision in the periods

in which such estimates have been changed.

Provision for other receivables

Provision for other receivables is made based on an
assessment of the recoverability of other receivables
and the timing of their recovery. The identification of
provision for other receivables requires management
judgement and estimation. Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original
estimates, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying amounts of other receivables and the amount
of provision/reversal of provision in the periods in

which such estimates have been changed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has three reportable operating segments
as follows:

(@) the ethanol segment is engaged in the
production and sale of ethanol products and
ethanol by-products;

(b)  the wine and liquor segment is engaged in the
sale and distribution of wine and liquor; and

(0 the animal feed segment is engaged in the
production and sale of forages.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment results.
Segment results are measured consistently with the
Group's loss before tax except that interest income,
finance costs as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, cash and
cash equivalents and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, amounts due to related parties and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

No intersegment sale and transfer was transacted for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

4.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 %5 R & B =

31 December 2013

4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. &&oEER (&)

Wine and Animal  Continuing Discontinued
liquor feed operations operations Total
BEge R
BE BN ¥5% %% @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TER TET
Year ended 31 December 2013 Bz-z-=%
tZA=+—-HBLEE
Segment revenue: 2EBAN:
Sales to external customers HETIRERP 94,176 - 94,176 346,609 440,785
Other revenue Hilhz= 2,237 - 2,237 6,520 8,757
96,413 - 96,413 353,129 449,542
Segment results PEEE (16,077) (326) (16,403) (126,545) (142,948)
Reconciliation: BE-
Interest income FISWA 24 1,178 1,202
Corporate and other unallocated expenses % R E AR EH T (7,382) - (7,382)
Finance costs MEXA (4,97) (7,495) (12,466)
Loss before tax BB RTEE (28,732) (132,862) (161,594)
Income tax expenses FBRAY (395) - (395)
Loss for the year rFEEERE (29,127) (132,862) (161,989)
Segment assets TREE 231,906 10,695 242,601 339,125 581,726
Reconciliation: k-
Elimination of intersegment receivables D sER e W FE (22,153) = (22,153)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ MEREMANHEE 1,026 - 1,026
Total assets AEBE 221,474 339,125 560,599
Segment liabilities THEAE 193,105 55 193,160 432,740 625,900
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment payables WisH D BRI FE (22,153) = (22,153)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ¥R EMANEEE 15,294 - 15,294
Total liabilities afFeE 186,301 432,740 619,041
Other segment information HitpBEH
Share of loss of an associate SMEHEAREE 201 - 201 - 201
Provision for inventories FE#E 51 - 51 19,274 19,325
Depreciation and amortisation HER#EH 1,858 45 1,903 31,103 33,006
Investment in an associate RBERRZERE 6,200 - 6,200 = 6,200
Capital expenditure* ERRES 2,018 2 2,020 6,008 8,028
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4.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2013

4., REIEEH (&)

Wine and Animal ~ Continuing ~ Discontinued
Ethanol liquor feed operations operations Total
SR B
L B Bkt £% £% @t
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(=5) (&=5) (&=7) (&=5) (&=5) (=5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER FAER FER TER FET
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-T--%+ZR
“+-ALEE
Segment revenue: FEBRA:
Sales to external customers HETHIAEP - 144,738 - 144,738 54,587 199,325
Other revenue Hh iz - 3,494 - 3,494 1,711 5,205
- 148,232 - 148,232 56,298 204,530
Segment results PEEE (56,004) (65,756)  (121,760) (177,720 (299,480)
Reconciliation: ik
Interest income FEHA 87 8 95
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMKSERZ
expenses (28,149) - (28,149)
Finance costs BEKR (1,238) (5,814) (7,052)
Loss before tax BRAIER (151,060) (183,526) (334,586)
Income tax credit FEHER 12,928 - 12,928
Loss for the year TEEBE (138,132)  (183,526)  (321,658)
Segment assets PEEE 320,943 137,697 31,111 439,751 - 489,751
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment WD BEERE
receivables (18,179) - (18,179)
Corporate and other unallocated rEREMASEEE
assets 48,971 - 48,971
Total assets BEBE 520,543 - 520,543
Segment liabilities PEER 327,932 30,375 18,480 376,787 - 376,787
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment payables  #{§4 7 48 e [+ 708 (18,179) - (18,179)
Corporate and other unallocated rEREBADEER
liabilities 69,121 - 69,121
Total liabilities AEeE 427,729 - 427,729
Other segment information HitpEER
Share of loss of an associate PEBERRER - 120 - 120 - 120
Impairment losses recognised RIEARK AR 2 REER
in the income statement - 54,862 61,255 116,177 111,200 227,377
(Reversal of provision)/ TR (BE2RR) /i
provision for inventories - (2,708) - (2,708) 5,471 2,763
Provision for other receivables Hth MR IER - 6,657 - 6,657 427 7,084
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH — 7,237 3,691 10,928 28,666 39,594
Investment in an associate REENRZRE - 3,612 - 3,612 - 3,612
Capital expenditure* BARS = 1,802 62 1,864 29,155 31,019
% Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * EARSBEARBEME BE LE

plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M A

31 December 2013
—E—=%+-_HA=+—H

4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

Over 90% of the Group's customers are located
in Mainland China and all revenue of the Group
is derived from operations in Mainland China. The
management considers that it is impracticable
to allocate the revenue and segment results to
geographical locations.

Information about a major customer

During the year, there was no external customer
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue of continuing operations (2012: Nil). Revenue
from discontinued operations of approximately
HK$118,462,000 (2012: Nil) was derived from sales to
a single customer.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group’'s turnover,
represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as
follows:

grE>B|ER (F)

& &R
KREBE% A EMEFAAFE A -
A5 B AT A WS 2R 8 =B A A 48
LEK -BEERARBEE DUWA -
DEEEREETITER -

—EFEEFZEH

REAFEARN TEINARZEMHAE

B ELEEBAWAI0%E A E
TE-F E) RIEREERD

118,462,000 T (ZF ——F : E)H

WAKEME—ZFRHEE-

WA ~ Bt WA R W 58
WATRBI RSB E X HHEEm
MBEREEFR LA REEREST

e
WA~ B WA R Was B DA 2R

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
(Restated)
(&&E=5)
Continuing operations BHEREER
Revenue N
Sale of goods HEEY 94,176 144,738
Other income and gains Hig A Rk Kz
Interest income F B WA 24 87
Others HAh 2,237 3,494
2,261 3,581
Discontinued operations RIEREER
Revenue N
Sale of goods HEEW 346,609 54,587
Other income and gains Hab g A & i
Amortisation of deferred income BSHIRIE YA (MF7E29)

(note 29) 510 498
Government grants* BT f B * 5,343 1,168
Interest income B A 1,178 8
Others Ht 667 45

7,698 1, 71¢)
3 The government grants represent the subsidies * BT EBL AR E B IR R EHR T 5

received by the Group from the local government
for environmental protection and the transformation
of new patterns of industrialisation. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to
these grants.

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7

A BB TS 2 fHRE - I &
?;EEJZ{I%#EEEE%E%%@“EEZEQ%{I%



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R

31 December 2013
—E—=%F+-_H=+—H

LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BKREAESE
The Group'’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REFEMNGRBRTEBBLSNSG, (5t A) T
(crediting): HIEIEREZFBEEL
2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FTET FHT
(Restated)
(g&&E5)
Continuing operations BREREXRK
Cost of inventories sold BEFERNKAKR 78,286 110,497
Depreciation e 14 1,756 1,190
Amortisation of other Hih A EgH
intangible assets 17 147 9,738
Minimum lease payments RIZE T REFLE
under operating leases HENKEHAS
in respect of land and
buildings 5,903 5,356
Auditor’s remuneration % ERT BN & 910 1,150
Employee benefit expense BB X
(including directors’ (BREEEMNs
emoluments (note 8)): (MIE8) ) -
Wages and salaries T& KR 13,374 16,498
Equity-settled share option P& #EE 45 B B AL #EFT 2
expense 5,100 9,373
Pension scheme contributions & Rk & 5t & i X 1,189 655
19,663 26,526
Other expenses: Hih i
Impairment of goodwill RERE 16 - 4,073
Impairment of other HihEEEERE
intangible assets 17 - 112,104
- 116,177
Foreign exchange differences, Ni& 7= %8 /% (&
net 8 (25)
Provision/(reversal of FERE (BE2
provision) for inventories* o) * 51 (2,708)
Provision for other LA Y SR IR B 4
receivables** - 6,657
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE - BE K
property, REER ZEE
plant and equipment 140 26
Loss on disposal of HEHB AR Z EE**
subsidiaries* * = SES6Y
Interest income FEBA (24) (87)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% R Y o

31 December 2013

—E—=F+_"A=+—H

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BREBLAIEE (&)
2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FExT FHET
(Restated)
(R&E5)
Discontinued operations  #R 1E 48 & ¥ 75
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERNKAK 428,927 71,590
Depreciation e 14 29,642 27,009
Amortisation of prepaid land &1 + ith FH & ## §5
lease payments 15 1,076 1,081
Amortisation of other Hh &7 E o
intangible assets 17 385 576
Employee benefit expense EERNMAX
(including directors’ (BREEEMNs
emoluments (note 8)): (MF7E8) ) -
Wages and salaries TE&E R 13,405 9,236
Pension scheme contributions  iE Rk & 5t & i 3X 3,725 1,794
17,130 11,030
Other expenses: Hihf % :
Impairment of items of ME - BRERREER
property, BE
plant and equipment 14 - 106,475
Impairment of other HiEmEEERE
intangible assets 17 - 4,725
- 111,200
Provision for inventories* FERE 19,274 5,471
Provision for other LA 1 YR IR B 4+
receivables** - 427
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE - HEK
property, RBIEE 2 BB
plant and equipment 525 20
Interest income MEMKA (1,178) (8)
& The provision for inventories for the year is included 5 REEFERET NrE18m R HAM

in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

LK The provision for other receivables and loss on
disposal of subsidiaries for the year are included
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

100 Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7

PEBAREKZ [HERA] R

N E At R MR IR R B th S P
RAZ BRI AGEBREREMEE
WARSK 2 [TTERFAN] A e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R

31 December 2013
—E—=F+_"A=+—H

7.  FINANCE COSTS 7. H®ERK
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(ge&E75)
Continuing operations BHEKEER
Interest on bank loans and ERAFATBHEEN
other loans wholly repayable RITERREMERAF L
within five years 4,971 1,238
Discontinued operations RIEREER
Interest on bank loans and ARAFANBHEEDN
other loans wholly repayable RITERREMERA T L
within five years 1,310 5,429
Interest on trade payables FENEBZHIEZHE 6,185 385
7,495 5,814
8.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEFM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed BELEMAEESRTEHNEI61F
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the HERECAFTEESTGTMUOT
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Fees e 1,237 1,042
Other emoluments: H e -
Salaries, allowances and e SRR EYH R
benefits in kind - 467
Equity-settled share option expense IRt E BARER 903 3,995
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFHEIHR 14 10
917 4,472
2,154 5,514
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHRERM

31 December 2013
—E—=%+-_HA=+—H

8.  DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEIEN (&)

In prior years, certain directors were granted share RUEEE BIERNATIEIRESE
options, in respect of their services to the Group, EFEERHRERAERELY ZREM
under the share option scheme of the Company, TEFRERGKE - — S EH R SR E
further details of which are set out in note 31 to the MzE31 c AR EBEANE M AR E DR
financial statements. The fair value of such options, HEERERE E AN EREEAESET
which has been recognised in the income statement HAKREEMBRENSEH N FiiE
over the vesting period, was determined as at the EfeHESEENRN-

date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIFHITES
2013 2012

Equity-settled Equity-settled

share option share option
Fees expense Total Fees expense Total

RELES Rigss
e BRERX @t e BRERX @z
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz TR TR TR TFign FER Fign
Dr. Loke Yu BEEMEL 100 - 100 100 13 113
Mr. Zhang Yonggen FABEE 100 13 113 100 66 166
Mr. Li Xiaofeng REELE [0} 50 = 50 4 - 4
Mr. Zuchowski Sam Zuchowski Sam%t 4 (ii) - - - 92 13 105
250 13 263 296 92 388
(i) Appointed on 1 December 2012. (i) R-_TB——F+_HF—HE

ZfEe
(ii) Resigned on 1 December 2012 (ii) RZE——F+_FA—H#&
f£o
There were no other emoluments payable to FAWEENBLIFENTES 2
the independent non-executive directors during HEMie (ZZ——F &)

the year (2012: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2013
—F-=F+-A=+—~

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. ZEEHM(E)
(b)  Executive directors and non-executive (b) HTEERIHBTES
directors
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense  contributions remuneration
e 2l RELE Rik&E
ne RENFE BRI % HWaE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt TERT TER TER THAT TERT
2013 -8-z=f%
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Han Dong B Ri4 (i) 35 = 890 = 925
Mr. Qu Shuncai JRIEZ %4 100 - - - 100
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRERE (i 400 - - 12 412
Mr. Song Shaohua ROELE (i 286 - - - 286
821 - 890 12 1,723

Non-executive directors: ~ FFEI{TES:

M. Lo Peter BRE44 (il 35 - - 2 37
Mr. Huang Qingxi EEERE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chen Hua B o=r4 () 21 = = = 21
Mr. Kong Hor Fai TBRLE (iv) 10 - - = 10
166 - - 2 168
987 - 890 14 1,891
2012 —F--F%
Executive directors: RWTES:
Mr. Han Dong B OREA 100 467 2,731 - 3,298
Mr. Qu Shuncai RIEA £ 4 (v) 58 - 428 - 486
Mr. Sun David Lee Rk (vi) 92 - 25 5 122
Mr. Zhao Difei fich S e (vii) 33 - 23 - 56
Mr. Li Jian Quan FRELE (vii) 137 - - - 137
Mr. Fu Hui B oBLE (viii) 40 - 431 - 471
460 467 3,638 5 4,570

Non-executive directors: ~ FEHTES:

Mr. Lo Peter KBEErE 100 - 252 5 357
Mr. Huang Qingxi EFBELLE (v) 58 - - - 58
Mr. Chen Hua B OELE (ix) 32 = = = 32
Mr. Kong Hor Fai TERELE (x) 4 - - - 4
Mr. Yeung Ting-Lap BRULE
Derek Emory (vi) 92 - 13 - 105
286 - 265 5 556
746 467 3,903 10 5,126
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E

31 December 2013
—F-=F+-A=+-A
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors (continued)
Notes:

(i) Retired on 7 May 2013.

(i) Appointed on 15 March 2013.

(iii) Resigned on 8 May 2013.

(iv) Resigned on 15 March 2013.
(v) Appointed on 1 June 2012.
(vi) Resigned on 1 December 2012.

(vii) Retired on 3 May 2012.
(viii)  Resigned on 1 June 2012.

(ix) Appointed on 6 September 2012.

(x) Appointed on 1 December 2012.

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBESEEER A 7
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9.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year
include two (2012: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three
(2012: three), highest paid employees who are not a
director of the Company, are as follows:

B RS R R M AL

31 December 2013
—E-—=F+=-A=1+—H

TEBEHES

FRA hEEaFEEREME (ZF
——FMB)ES HFMFBEEET
REXMES RAFERN Hf =%
—E-CFZR)ReFER (XL3F
ARBIER) ZFHMHFBAOT -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & 285 R E W F| 55
R4 E BT R X

Equity-settled share option expense

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHE R

The number of non-director and highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TAET
1,233 1,259
4,428 1,983
17 14
5,680 3,256

? YFEERERBEZHMEN FTIIE

Number of employees

EEHHE
2013 2012
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7C £ 1,500,000/ 7T = -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2,000,000/ 7T = 1
Over HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T A & 1 -
3 3

During the year and in prior years, share options
were granted to certain non-director, highest paid
employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in the
income statement over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director, highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

AEEARNEFEE BETHESERERS
HEEMASEEDL 2 R mERER
W — P HEHBE N M RRM S -
iy E%WEWAWEEWM%%
EEAFEAREBHETE FAR
FEMBHMENSEHRA Lit #%%E
EMeIETESEAN-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 %5 R & B =

31 December 2013

— &
=
=

10.

=#+=ZRA=+—H

INCOME TAX

During the year, no Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided as there was no assessable profit arising from
Hong Kong (2012: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rate of tax
prevailing in Mainland China in which the Group
operates.

10.

FR&®
SRS P ESE ol
Bl BB E A BEHRRE (=2
— 4 ) o FER UM BRI
B4 42 0 R B P b B B MO B
P B -

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FETT

Under-provision in previous years TEBETR 410 -
Current B EA - 1,298
Deferred (note 28) JEAE (Ff15+28) (15) (14,226)
Total tax expenses/(credit) for the year FEFIEMY /(%R )25 395 (12,928)

A reconciliation of the tax expenses/(credit) applicable
to loss before tax at the statutory rate for Hong
Kong in which the Company and its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax credit at the effective tax rate,
and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the
statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as
follows:

e JE YN ) B VN [ordi
) P B A B BT 9 MO BB
W, (%) BEERBEHE0HE
U5 U REMRE (EVEERE)
SR B R SR T ¢

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Continuing operations FELEER
Loss before tax bR T B ES 1B (28,732) (151,060)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEDEFTENHIE (4,741) (24,925)
Effect of different tax rates of MEBARITRBENTE
subsidiaries 714 (1,427)
Adjustments in respect of B HIRE 2 BN 1A 2
current tax of previous periods Bk 410 -
Expenses not deductible for tax REE A= ol5 53 3,563 33
Tax losses not recognised AERN TR IEREE 399 13,361
Loss attributable to an associate N R EIHE R 50 30
Tax expense/(credit) at the Group's BEARSBEERMEFTENTIER
effective rate FX, (&%) 395 (12,928)

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7




10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2013
—E—=F+_"A=+—H

INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FrB% (&)
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Discontinued operations BRI EET
Loss before tax BR 5 A& 1B (132,862) (183,526)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFTENIE (21,922) (30,282)
Effect of different tax rates of MEBARITRBENE
subsidiaries (11,291) (16,101)
Expenses not deductible for tax EED A 0l5 53 323 29,743
Tax losses not recognised AERM IR IEEE 32,890 16,640
Tax expense at the Group's BRASEERB R ENTHIA
effective rate < - -
The share of tax attributable to an associate D15 B N B FE (Y B 18 A50,0005 7T
amounting to HK$50,000 (2012: 30,000) is included —E——4%:30,00006T) B ALGS
in “Share of loss of an associate” in the consolidated B EEMEEWRAREZ [D(EHE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive NAIEEB| BT
income.

-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHRERM

31 December 2013

—=

11.

12.

13.

—=F+=ZA=+—H

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
The consolidated loss attributable to owners of
the parent for the year ended 31 December 2013
includes a loss of approximately HK$2,981,000 (2012:
HK$265,109,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 32(b)).

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

For continuing and discontinued operations

11.

12.

13.

BRAEEARGEEE

BE-_T—="Ft+t-A=t+—HL*#F
B BorfE ARIGAHEREREE
RARBIMBRE P EIE (FE32(b))

B E51E492,981,00008 T (—ZE— — 4
265,109,000 7T) ©

2

BEfEEMEEC iﬁ—;¢+ A
—t—HLEFESEREAKE(ZZ
—TF )

BREE
ERENBE IR ARRRERE AR
IHEERR A F NS 31T X% @ A% 2 Nt
HHETE -

FECERBRRIEEEXEK

2013 2012
Loss attributable to the equity holders — ZN2 B+ B A FE(L BB
of the Company (HK$'000) (FHT) (126,770) (277,800)
Weighted average number of EBEITEER . NEFHE
ordinary shares in issue ('000) (Fh) 1,195,162 1,191,660
Basic loss per share (HK cents) SRR EAREE OB) (10.61) (23.31)

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7




13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

B RS R R M AL

31 December 2013
—E—=%F+-_H=+—H

BRER ()

For continuing operations BERSEER
2013 2012
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss attributable to the equity holders  ZNA R] i i35 B A FE(L B8
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#&T) (126,770) (277,800)
Add: Loss attributable to the equity m:ARARRERE ABLRE
holders of the Company BRI EEB 2 EBE
from discontinued operations (FA7T)
(HK$'000) 99,972 139,111
Loss attributable to the equity RARIREREE ARLRBFHE
holders of the Company B EE(TET)
from continuing operations
(HK$'000) (26,798) (138,689)
Weighted average number of ordinary & 277 & A% 2 hiiE
shares in issue ('000) (FH) 1,195,162 1,191,660
Basic loss per share (HK cents) BREXREE (B (2.24) (11.64)

For discontinued operations

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations
is HK8.37 cents (2012: HK11.67 cents) per share
based on the loss attributable to shareholders of
the Company from the discontinued operations
of approximately HK$99,972,000 (2012:
HK$139,111,000).

No diluted loss per share has been presented for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 as there
was no dilutive potential ordinary share outstanding
during the year and the exercise price of the
Company'’s outstanding share options was higher than
the average market price for the Company’s share
during the year.

WIEREEK
RIMCEEB s BREABEBAESR
8378 (=ZFE—=F:11.6781) -
THIRBE AN B R FEAG 2R B 4R | E AR &
% 2 E5184999,972,0008 T (— T ——
139,111,000/ 70) Mt & e

HRFALEDBTEEETLTARR
RATHRITEERENITEESNA
RARHFERNFEHETE R EZ)
HE-—F—=k=-F—=-%+=A
—t+—BLEFENERBEEEE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e

31 December 2013

—E—=F+_"A=+—H

14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. YE- -BERKE
Leasehold
improvements,
Plantand furniture and Motor  Construction
Group Buildings ~ machinery fixtures vehicles in progress Total
HE
nEEE
g BF RBEREE HAREE RE ERIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
31 December 2013 ZE-ZHEtZAZT-8
At 31 December 2012 and RIZ-ZE+-A=+-H
at 1 January 2013; RHZZ-=%-A—-8:
Cost KA 121,347 329,800 11,088 11,155 32,216 505,606
Accurnulated depreciation and ZEMERNE
impairment (58,626) (193,485) (9,782) (3,930) (3,090) (268,913)
Net carrying amount REFE 62,721 136,315 1,306 1,225 29,126 236,693
At 1 January 2013, net of accumulated  R=F—-=%-A—H-
depreciation and impairment MR 2EHFTERAE 62,721 136,315 1,306 7,225 29,126 236,693
Additions RE 1 1,638 74 299 4141 6,159
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) WE-BHRBAR (fH33) = - 1,869 - - 1,869
Disposals e - (991) (17) (274) = (1,282)
Depreciation provided during the year £ R:HRTE (4,321) (24,842) (559) (1,676) = (31,398)
Transfers E L - 334 - 449 (783) -
Transfers to assets classified a BRENBARENEZEE
held for sales (44,391) (115,497) 2 (5,346) (33,140) (198,372)
Exchange realignment B 5 AR 1,363 3,043 121 130 656 5313
At 31 December 2013, net of accumulated ¥ =F—=F+-f=+-8"
depreciation and impairment MR 2EHTERAE 15,379 - 2,79 807 - 18,982
At 31 December 2013: WZE-=FftZA=1+-H:
Cost KA 19,214 - 13,259 1,484 - 33,957
Accurnulated depreciation and ZEMERNE
impairment (3,835) - (10,463) (677) - (14,975)
Net carrying amount REFE 15,379 = 2,79 807 - 18,982

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2013
—E—=F+_"A=+—H

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. ¥ -BERRE (HF)
Leasehold
improvements,
Plantand  furniture and Motor  Construction
Group Buildings machinery fixtures vehicles in progress Total
ik
nERE-
*5E BF HEREE GAREE "E ERIE @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TiER FET T
31 December 2012 ZE-CEZAST-
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——%+ZA=+-H
at 1 January 2012: k=Z-—%-A-H
Cost KA 110,235 322,808 10,340 9,690 18,528 471,601
Accurnulated depreciation and ZEMERNE
impairment (27,214) (89,559) (9,348) (2,834) (2,758) (131,713)
Net carrying amount FHETE 83,021 233,249 992 6,856 15,770 339,838
At 1 January 2012, net of accumulated ~ RZF—ZF—F—H"
depreciation and impairment MR 2ETERAE 83,021 233,249 992 6,856 15,770 339,888
Additions WE 125 (303) 793 2,094 28,310 31,019
Disposals HeE - - (60) (516) - (576)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HENBAT (Hi34) - - - (100) - (100)
Impairment HE (27,217) (78,943) (10) - (305 (106475)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRTERE (3,599) (23,041) 412) (1,147) - (28,199)
Transfers g% 10,093 4,679 - - (14,772) -
Exchange realignment 5 AE 298 674 3 38 123 1,136
At 31 December 2012, net of accumulated R =F—-F+=-F=+-8"
depreciation and impairment N 25 TERAE 62,721 136,315 1,306 7,225 29,126 236,693
At 31 December 2012: WZE-—F+-f=1-AH:
Cost KA 121,347 329,800 11,088 11,155 32216 505,606
Accumulated depreciation and ZiTERAE
impairment (58,626) (193,485) (9,782) (3,930) (3,090) (268,913)
Net carrying amount FHEFE 62,721 136,315 1,306 7,225 29,126 236,693

At 31 December 2013, certain items of the Group's
property, plant and equipment classified as assets held
for sale with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$44,362,000 (2012: HK$36,106,000) were pledged
to secure bank loans (note 24).

ReEZB~=Ft+=A=+-—"B. 5
EARBELECEECEERBEFRE
#144,362,000 L (—F — —F:
36,106,000 70) 2 AR BE TYE - K
B REEIEABITERZIER (M

24) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHRERM

31 December 2013
—T-=F+=ZH=+—H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Impairment testing of property, plant and
equipment
(i) The Group’s subsidiary, Harbin China Distillery
0., Ltd ("Harbin China”), has continuously
suffered significant loss from its ethanol
production. Updated analyses were then
prepared to determine if there was further
impairment of the underlying assets by
assessing their value in use.

Assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the ethanol cash-generating unit
for 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.
The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of
property, plant and equipment:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used
to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, adjusted for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market
development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are
before tax and reflect specific risks relating to
the relevant units.

Raw materials price inflation — The basis used to
determine the value assigned to raw materials
price inflation is the forecast price indices
during the budget year for Mainland China
from where the raw materials are sourced.

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7
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14.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Impairment testing of property, plant and
equipment (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(continued)

The values assigned to the key assumptions on
discount rates and raw materials price inflation
are consistent with external information
sources.

No impairment loss (2012: HK$108,021,000)
was recognised and allocated to property, plant
and equipment (2012: HK$103,296,000) and
intangible assets (2012: HK$4,725,000) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year.

The ethanol production of the Group's
subsidiary, Ningxia West Bright New Resources
Technology Co., Ltd (“Ningxia”), has been idled
since March 2008. The recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment of Ningxia
has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a one-year period
approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections was
24.5%. In view of the adverse operating
environment, the management determined to
fully impair the property, plant and equipment
of HK$3,179,000 in 2012.

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries
mentioned in (i) and (ii) above, together with
BAPP (Northwest) Limited, were transferred to
assets held for sales as the Group entered into
agreements with independent third parties after
year end date. Details of the transactions are
set out in note 24.

B RS R R M AL

31 December 2013
—E-—=F+=-A=1+—H

Y- BB KRRE (&)
M BERRERERNR (&)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(&)
MRXEBEMHERBRNEE
RER BB RSN EEE AR — B

WENAFE 2 ixa18m RHEM

TEHBABRKERBREEE (=

:,=_:¢ 108,021 ooo;‘aﬁ)&
SHEME -BERZHE (=

— — % :103,296,0007% T ) &?ﬂi

WEE(ZF— 44,725,000

BIT) °

AEEWB AR EERIPIFH
BEREHEMARAR ([EE])
IBEEEBB_TZENF=
RAREELE -TEZME BE

Bz E e REIZFERER
FTEEAEE R B AFERIUNE
EEAEMNRE —FNKEE
REENRSRETRAMET -
BARReRERAMNAEEXRA
245% - ERIEEIRBINE B
BEAETR-_Z—Z_F8Mmz-
[ Bs K 55 i 2 BURE 3,179,000

7E°

B R DFrt 2 i B A &) (3
[EIBAPP (Northwest) lelted)Z
EERBBCDEBEREHESR
E REANFHARE NEEH
BYE=AFIMAWE - XHFHB
HRHIEE24 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHRERM

31 December 2013
—E—=%+-_HA=+—H

15.  PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. BfALHHEE
Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B®REE 33,264 34,082
Recognised during the year FAER (1,076) (1,081)
Transfer to assets classified as EBRESER
held for sale BIERECZEE (32,894) -
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B 706 263
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ RA=+—B8kREE - 33,264
Current portion included in FIATENRIB - Re Rk
prepayments, deposits and H iy FE U GRIE Y BN HR ZB 5
other receivables - (1,094)
Non-current portion FEBNEAER > - 32,170

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is
held under a medium term lease.

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s
leasehold land classified as assets held for sale with a
net carrying amount of approximately HK$16,027,000
(2012: HK$16,035,000) was pledged to secure bank
loans (note 24).

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7

HETREFRABEORFE - LRP

REE

RZE—=F+=—A=+—H'%H
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I ERIBITE R 2 TR (MIFE24) -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2013
—E—=F+_"A=+—H

16. GOODWILL 16. P9E
Group
rEH
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 1 January: R—H—H8:
Cost DN 71,089 71,089
Accumulated impairment RETRVE (71,089) (67,016)
Net carrying amount BREEFRR - 4,073
Cost at 1 January, net of R—A—BZRA&
accumulated impairment HBR 25HRE - 4,073
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33) Wi — R B A A (MIFE33) 468 -
Impairment during the year FARIE - (4,073)
Cost and net carrying amount RT+ZA=+—HB2ZHA K
at 31 December FREEFEE 468 -
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Cost DN 71,557 71,089
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (71,089) (71,089)
Net carrying amount FREE 5 468 -
Impairment testing of goodwill B8 Z R E A
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has BREBEHBEBE L HEESEZSY
been allocated to the animal feed cash-generating unit ERIIR & EE B LAERBE R -

for impairment testing.

-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHRERM

31 December 2013

=

16.

—=f%t+-A=t—H

GOODW.ILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was
15.0% (2012: 23.3%) and cash flows beyond the five-
year period were extrapolated using a growth rate of
5% (2012: 5%) which does not exceed the long term
average growth rate of the wine and liquor industry.

Other key assumptions for value in use calculation
related to the estimation of cash inflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation
is based on past performance and management’s
expectations.

No impairment loss (2012: HK$46,205,000) was
recognised and allocated to goodwill (2012:
HK$4,073,000) and intangible assets (2012:
HK$42,132,000) in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year.

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7
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BmE (&)

BEZRENR (&)

AR EIREIRESREREI &2
ERFHUKEELRARERER
BRERABEAEMET - ERARES
MEEBZMIIREA15.0% (ZE—=
F:233%) ﬁtLﬂﬁzﬁﬁziﬁimui
TIRAERES% (ZF——%F:5%) T
AR B REABBBRITEZ R
TTES

AR REET B BT BRI
KBS HAMS ROEEEHERE
R - AR DEN BT R B R
BB L -

jﬁ?ﬂiﬁéﬁiﬁzﬁﬁé\ﬁéﬁﬁﬁi\ﬁ
WA ¥R 2% FE REURL (BB 1B —

46,205,000/ 7T ) K& 5 ﬁaiﬁ% (==&
— — 414,073,000 T) R EFEE
ZE— 4 :42,132,000/87T) °



17.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2013

17. HMEREE

Customer Distribution
Group Technologies Trademarks base rights Total
S| i wE EFER DEHE @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR TER TER TER
31 December 2013 —E-=%
+=ZA=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2013, net of R-E—=%—-f—H
accumulated amortisation and BIRAS - Bk B5t
impairment BENRE - 12,140 = = 12,140
Amortisation provided during the year 4 1 &5 B i - (532) - - (532)
Transfer to assets classified as BREDERFE
held for sale MEZEE - (9,164) - - (9,164)
Exchange realignment B % 5% - 176 - - 176
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=%
+-A=+—H - 2,620 - - 2,620
At 31 December 2013: RZE—=F
+=A=+-8:
Cost AR 165,503 3,179 - 56,542 225,224
Accumulated amortisation and S EHEIORE
impairment (165,503) (559) - (56,542) (222,604)
Net carrying amount REEZE - 2,620 - - 2,620
31 December 2012 —B-=F
+=ZA=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2012, net of R-Z-——%#—H—H
accumulated amortisation and BB - R B8
impairment KA E 73,937 17,545 - 47,492 138,974
Amortisation provided during the year £ %) 85 B & (3,965) (691) - (5,658) (10,314)
Impairment RE (69,972) (4,725) - (42,132) (116,829)
Exchange realignment ERLAE - 11 - 298 309
At 31 December 2012 RZZ—ZF
ST = 12,140 = = 12,140
At 31 December 2012: RZZ—ZF
S =H=Ctn E
Cost BRA 165,503 33,356 30,368 55,271 284,498
Accumulated amortisation and ZHEHEIRE
impairment (165,503) (21,216) (30,368) (55,271) (272,358)
Net carrying amount EEETE - 12,140 - = 12,140
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHRERM

31 December 2013
—E—=%+-_HA=+—H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. H#EREE (@)
Impairment testing of other intangible assets BEMEEEE ZRBE S
Technologies i
The Group directed most of its resources to the REFERFARKSHERERAEFRN
development of the Group’s ethanol business and LB G HEER  REFE YL
wine and liquor business, the development of the NIRRT o R B R Rl 2
Group’s animal feed business was hindered. As there B HEBEHERA MR -_SE——F8AE
is no projected revenue for the animal feed business, B T 2 B R R (B B 1869,972,00058
the technologies have been fully impaired with an JT ©
impairment loss of HK$69,972,000 recognised in
2012.
Trademarks a4
Details of the impairment test on the recoverable BB/ EREeEHEMN (BIEEFIAY
amount of the ethanol cash-generating unit, which i 7 &) n] ik [0 4 28 7 BE RIS S
the trademarks are allocated to, are set out in note 14. HAMEE14 o
Distribution rights P pE
Details of the impairment test on the recoverable HiEEvIReEREMN (B9 EETUSD
amount of the wine and liquor cash-generating unit, TR > g5 ) Al e B & %8 27 S5 (B 8 5 51
which the distribution rights are allocated to, are set HRHEE14 -

out in note 14.

18.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. MMBARMNER
Company
AT
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LR - IRACAR(E 314,917 314,917
Due from subsidiaries JRE WAL BfT /&8 2 B FRIE 311,218 310,877
626,135 625,794
Impairment* E* (458,606) (458,606)
167,529 167,188
# An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted t BETHLEMERERERKE QA
investments and due from subsidiaries with carrying HEERABRME AREED R
amounts of HK$277,917,000 and HK$309,289,000 277,917,000 7t 309,289,000/ 7T
(before deducting the impairment loss), respectively. (RIBRMEERE)

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R

31 December 2013

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. MRHIBATRREZR (&)
The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the A Lt A B A T8 I8 B 8 E M B
investments in subsidiaries above are unsecured, NAEIRBEAEET R LEBRTER
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. Hl-BE=R A ZEVHWEAE TH
In the opinion of the directors, these advances are BARZEREER
considered as quasi-equity loans to the subsidiaries.
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: NG S N
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of issued Percentage of
registration ordinary/registered equity attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
EMRIL CRITEE/
%8 AR EELE MR AEE APRELEBREAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
E# i
Harbin China Distillery Co., Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB318,000,000 - 75 Production and sale of
ethanol
BEETEBEARAR ** WmE REARE  AKE 318,000,000 EERHELE
BAPP Ethanol Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$4,450,682 100 - Investment holding
ERELES/ 4,450,682 7T REER
BAPP (Northwest) Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
KRALES /BF (E REZK
Ningxia West Bright New Resource PRC/Mainland China RMB45,010,558 - 100 Dormant
Technology Co., Ltd.*
EERPRVIEREMN HmE B AR 45,010,5587T BEfE
BiTERAR *
Skymax International Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Inactive
Enterprise Limited
RTERRECEERAR B 1#T Tmey
Bio-Dynamic China Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
ENBHPEERAR B 1#T BEER
Harbin Niu Wang Muye PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000 - 100 Research and
Management Co., Ltd.* development
RREFENEEBERAR * HE B AR ARH 1,500,0007 B K%
Harbin Meiming Wenshi Spirit PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Distribution of wine and
Sales Co., Limited* liquor
BREXERTER HE B AR ARH 5,000,007 AIHBE
HEERAR *
Rightsouth Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$4,694,001 100 - Investment holding
RERARS /EBF 4,694,001 7T REER
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31 December 2013
—E—=%+-_HA=+—H

120

under the PRC law.

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. J‘J’(\‘Bﬁ%@ﬂ HRER (8)
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of issued Percentage of
registration ordinary/registered equity attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
HEMAYL/ BRITEE/
a8 AMREERE EMBRAEE AARELERERAL TEREH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Guangzhou Wine and Liguor Franchised PRC/Mainland China RMB12,500,000 - 70  Retail sales and
Stores Ltd.** distribution of wine
and liquor
EMNBEREREEHARADF HE REARE AR 12,500,0007 BRTENNH
Power Range Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$2 - 100 Investment holding
NEREBRBR AR EBRAHE /BE 2ET REZK
JGJ (China) Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
FEME (FE)EEERAR Bk %L REZK
Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Distribution of wine and
Trading Limited* liquor
AYmEARERHEARAF * HE REARE AR 10,000,00070 7 #HER
Hunan Meiming Wenshi Jiuguijiu Sales PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 - 100 Distribution of wine and
Limited* liquor
HEEEREERAHERRAR HE REARE AR H15,000,00070 7 #HER
Keen Vitality Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100 - Inactive
ERRUEE /BE 50,0005 7T TEex
Ningxia Kelong Industrial PRC/Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 51 Not yet commence
Co., Limited** business
EENBEXERAF HEL/ KBE AE 810,000,000 REmHE:
* Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise * BIEFRBEEFM AN EBEERE-
under the PRC law.
&0 Registered as a sino-foreign equity joint venture % REFPEDEEIM ARG EREE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R

31 December 2013
—E—=%F+-_H=+—H

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RHBLATIMRER (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company LRI REEERATELEFT
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally EENEKAEREEFETESLD 2
affected the results for the year or formed a KATIMB AT - EERAIRMHEMM
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To BARlIzHBEE BN ILE-

give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material NEBEEAEAFFIERER 2B AT
non-controlling interests are set out below: ZEEFHY O
2013 2012
Percentage of equity interest held by — FEIERERATIFRET DL
non-controlling interests:
Ningxia Kelong Industrial Co., Limited ZEEREEEHFR AR 49% -
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor BMNBEREEEEHARAA
Franchised Stores Limited 30% 30%
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Loss for the year allocated to DT IEERER
non-controlling interests: FEEE:
Ningxia Kelong Industrial Co., Limited ZEEREEZAR A A (28) -
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor BMNBEEEEEHEGRAA
Franchised Stores Limited (1,233) (556)
Accumulated balances of RE B TR ER 2
non-controlling interests at REHEERR
the reporting dates:
Ningxia Kelong Industrial Co., Limited ZEER[EETZAR A A 5,748 -
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor BN EREEEEHARAA
Franchised Stores Limited 4,891 6,003
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% R Y o

31 December 2013
—E—=%+-_HA=+—H

18.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RHBLATIMRER (8)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TxRY R ERFE QT 28 EE R #

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts B IFESEIINEA AT BN
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: B :

Guangzhou

Wine and

Ningxia Liquor

Kelong Franchised

Industrial Stores

Co Limited Limited

2y ] B MEE
MEEX =SHEEFEH
BRAF BRAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

2013 —E-=F FET THET
Revenue WA - 85,011
Total expense Fisz 4258 (58) (89,123)
Loss for the year FEEBE (58) (4,112)
Total comprehensive loss for the year  F/E 2 H EE4R%E (58) (4,112)
Current assets MENE E 9,982 50,419
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,780 282
Current liabilities mBNBE (31) (34,396)
Net cash flows (used in)/from KRS (TR /FTis

operating activities REeEnEFE (228) 790
Net cash flows from investing activities % & EBFTSIHE &

e TR - 22

Net cash flows used in MEEBMAREREFHE

financing activities = (232)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeMIREeEEY

cash equivalents CRA) /e hnF5E (228) 580

1722 Sino Distillery Group Limited FEI BB EB AR A 7
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2013
—E—=F+_"A=+—H

18. RKIBARKER ()

Guangzhou

Wine and

Liquor

Franchised

Stores Limited

BN B 28

SEREH

BRAA]

HK$'000

2012 —T——F FHET
Revenue WA 115,245
Total expense B 42 %8 (113,392)
Profit for the year F & A 1,853
Total comprehensive for the year FELTHMER 1,853
Current assets mENEE 51,472
Non-current assets FEREBEE 801
Current liabilities mEEE (32,262)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (&&/EEAMARES REFHE (5,722)
Net cash flows used in investing activites & /EEFTARS RE F5E (462)
Net cash flows used in financing activities EEE /ZEMARS REFE (239)

Net decrease in cash and RekREFEMRD FE

cash equivalents (6,423)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% R Y o

31 December 2013
—E—=%+-_HA=+—H

19.  INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. REBZATZRE
Group
REH
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Share of net assets DhEEFE 3,491 3,612
Loans advanced to an associate P F—EBE QAR ZER 2,709 -
6,200 3,612
On 12 October 2012, due to the default of a loan n= —F+At+=—B ARET—

to an independent third party of HK$3,732,000, the
Group enforced the security of the loan and acquired
a 30% interests in Hunan Xiangxi Qiliang Dongcang
Wine Stock Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Dongcang”) The
particulars of the associate are as follows:

oS-
B % =75 23,732,000/8 TTERUE X
B AEREREINTZERIER
WS R TE A RREEZER D AR
AR ([HARERE] ) 230% e o &5 &
NAEZFHBWT:

Percentage of

Nominal value of Place of ownership interest
issued/registered incorporation/ attributable to
Name share capital registration the Group  Principal activities
BR{T/EM EEEERL
2% BRAEE ERRL/EZmbH EEERRAAIL EIEEK
Hunan Dongcang* RMB 10,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 30 Inactive
R AR 10,000,000 R ARE Emex
Xiangxi Zizhizhou* RMB600,000 PRC/Mainland China 285  Inactive
M B A« AR# 600,0007C hE /B TEEX

* Not audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited.

The Group's shareholdings in the associate is held
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7
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19.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 19.
Hunan Dongcang which is considered a material
associate of the Group, is accounted for using the

equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Hunan Dongcang adjusted for any

B RS R R M AL

31 December 2013
—ZT—=F+=-A=1+—8H
REBEQRATZRE (&)
MERE e BAEE 2 EAKEA
A)) Ty AEmREARR-

14

EE2S

TRETUETHRREMNEEMARZ
AR M E R R M s E

differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to WEANREEZHER:
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements:
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Current assets mENEE 12,473 5,344
Non-current assets FEREEE 6,314 12,196
Current liabilities mBEE (7,205) (5,911)
Net assets BEFE 11,582 11,629

Reconciliation to the Group's interest ~ B ZREFE B E AR 2w 2

in the associate: HER:
Proportion of the Group's ownership AN B A #E 2 L] 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the investment ®EZREEB 3,475 3,489
Revenues WA — -
Loss for the year KEEZEE (669) (394)
Total comprehensive loss AFEEEHEBEBRE
for the year (669) (394)
The following table illustrates the financial information TRBTRAEE 2 W IEE R ER 2B &
of the Group’s associate that is not individually RNalZ B ER :
material:
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Share of the associate’s loss for the year 23 {h 284 fE B & N R &5 18 - -
Share of the associate’s total DMEHE AR EK AR
comprehensive income = =
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEERBEQARIREZ
Group's investments in the associate ~ #2BRTHEI(E 16 123
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e

31 December 2013
—E—=%+-_HA=+—H

20. INVENTORIES 20. B

Group

rEH
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Raw materials JR## - 59,322
Work in progress TEEm - 6,219
Finished goods 2= X oh 59,670 69,419
59,670 134,960
Provision for inventories FERE®E (322) (5,801)
59,348 129,159

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21, EWESERREE

21.

Other than the cash and credit card sales, the Group
allows a credit period which is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade and bills receivable
balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

None of the trade and bills receivables is impaired. An
aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

RIREMERBHEN AEEZEE
H—kr—EA MEAFFAGLER
E-BA -BUEFPHURERSEER
B AKBEYEREBREZEALE
BERFAETANRMYLEMBEER
o REEZIERRALEBEATEE -

BMERKEZIEINEBERDHE -
BEMR BURESEANERBRER
ARGt EMERE DT :

Group

AEE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 1 month —E AR 4,332 5,243
1 to 2 months —Z=mMEA 133 355
Over 3 months Bim =18 A 165 375
4,630 5,973
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R

31 December 2013

—E—=%F+-_H=+—H
EWEZERAREE (&)

BRIk £ R R AT THIRRE BINE
SEREEBEZERYTOT

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.
The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that

are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

Group

rEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired R EATRARORE 4,332 5,440
Less than 1 month past due BHILR—EA 133 158
Over 3 months past due B HARE A =B A 165 375
4,630 5,973

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

All the trade and bills receivables are denominated in
Renminbi.

ARIEH TR AR (B 2 FE WK TR K & 5 1]
WEEBNCHEZZHCEFAR-

BHVERBEZ ERFRER A RES
RFFERBZETEILEF AR 1R
EBELR ARAEERSEF X
ERSERERE RAREEERY
BEAFHIREERNERRATER
Y o

PRBERWE SRR FEEGAAREF
=8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHRERM

31 December 2013
—E—=%+-_HA=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, BRARE RERHEMEWRRIE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
X&E PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET THT
Prepayments BRHE 68,320 33,046 958 261
Deposits and other receivables e hEmERIE 11,430 6,484 = 1,414
Tax recoverable EEER3E 1,571 5,966 = -
81,321 45,496 958 1,675
Provision for other receivables H i IE & (676) (653) = -
80,645 44,843 958 1,675
Included in the above provision for other receivables is BT LA | B e WK IR s A ME Bl 2R
a provision for individually impaired other receivables B E M fE R IB #E1#676,0008 7T (=F
of HK$676,000 (2012: HK$653,000) with a carrying — 4 :653,000/8 L)  EBHERIRE
amount before provision of HK$676,000 (2012: {H676,000/8 77 (=& — — 4 : 653,000
HK$653,000). BT e
Save as disclosed above, none of the above assets Br Eal P R O B DA 8 E A HP
is either past due or impaired. The financial assets LERE LlERBE I eRMEED
included in the above balances relate to receivables for B S 3T W AR HE R FR B FEMR B o
which there was no recent history of default.
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables DHMEEGEZEZS AARERA
denominated in other currency ftt & U =R I8
Included in the deposits, prepayments and other R& - FE I RRIA I H At JE Y SR IE B 45 BA
receivables are the following amounts denominated in EHREBINZ EEFEZANT 5
a currency other than the presentation currency:
2013 2012
RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB’000 HK$'000
AR®TR TExT ARETR THET
62,810 79,887 34,704 43,168
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31 December 2013
—E—=%F+-_H=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 23. BARELZEYRCEBER
DEPOSITS
Group Company
r5E NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TEL TERT FTAET
Cash and bank balances Be MR 25,487 8,398 20 1,372
Time deposits BT 7,784 37,317 - -
33,271 45,715 20 1,372
Less: L
Pledged for bills payable ERENZERZER
(note 25) (P45E25) (7,784) (37,317) - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBReEEY 25,487 8,398 20 1,372

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$25,338,000 (2012: HK$6,829,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 6
months depending on the immediate cash equivalents
of the Group and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RB|ERR  AEERARBTENIR
& K IR1T 48 525,338,000 L (— &
— — 1 :6,829,000 7T ) ° FAM + IRIEH
B K e A FINDE 5 1) 15k 151 K SNBEE 168 151 A 5
[E EELNMEESE ARBAA AR
HMABEMER KEBEESRER
EEITINEEBHFTHARE L BAE
HihEHo

RITRSEEBARTERMNERZEH
) R BREX A S, - 22 B E B TF IRV K E6
EAMEEL (RFAEENKFE
) WiRE B 5 8 BT SON) R BREUR
B RTTRESH R B ERF R F RN
I \EOCRZBEEZRT
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31 December 2013
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=

24,

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(i)

(ii)

On 24 February 2014, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”),
entered into the Agreement with the
Zhaodong Beidahuang Biotechnology Limited
and Linxiang Huayin Changjiang Small and
Medium Enterprises Guarantee Limited (the
“Purchasers”), whereby the Purchasers have
conditionally agreed to purchase and the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell the Sale
Capital, representing all 75% equity interest
in Harbin China Distillery Limited held by the
subsidiary at the consideration of RMB40
million.

On 26 March 2014, BAPP Ethanol Holdings
Limited (the “BAPP"),
subsidiary of the Group, entered into the
Agreement with an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”), the BAPP has conditionally
agreed to sell all 100% equity interest in
the BAPP (Northwest) Limited held by the
BAPP, which hold 100% equity interest of
Ningxia West Bright New Resource Technology
Company Limited at the consideration of
RMB40 million (the “Disposal of BAPP").

a wholly-owned

The results of the discontinued operations for
the year are presented below:

24,

(ii)

G R

RZZE-—MF_-_A-+MHE" K
AAZ—HE2EMBAR([E
FEERIERFREMHEE
[RABREAHERETIH/ N
FERBRAR(EF])FIL
W B BEHEBKRHERE
BEMESCSAKMARELEH
SRR E R XM B R BT
BEZhBETEBESRAF
ZEBI5%kE KE/RARE
40,000,0007T °

—UE=A=-+xB" K
£ B 2 &M B~ aBAPP Ethanol
Holdings Limited ([BAPP | ) £
—BUFE=F([EF])FI L%
W% BAPPE BRI E L&
BAPPET#5 A 2 BAPP (Northwest)
Limited (AR BEB AL A R
BEIR =T R T A R A 7 2100%
WetE) 2 2 E6100%M% & REA
A R #40,000,0007T ([BAPPH
g1

RERIRERBZFEFEEAS
FIEAE :

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Revenue WA 354,307 56,306

Expenses 2 (479,674) (234,018)

Finance costs DN (7,495) (5,814)
Loss before tax from the discontinued — #% |F 4§ & 275 2 Br Bl Al E518

operations (132,862) (183,526)

Income tax FTiSHi - -

Loss for the year from BRI EEB 2 FEBE
the discontinued operations (132,862) (183,526)
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31 December 2013
—E—=%F+-_H=+—H

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 24. 1 4 s e g (43
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the )54\—1—:)% —+—BoEABELREEZR
discontinued operations classified as held for sale as at ER I REER S EENBEZTER
31 December are as follows: AN :
2013
HK$'000
FHExT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment S ERN &S 198,372
Prepaid land lease payments B LS 32,894
Other intangible assets BEmEEE 9,164
Inventories FE 65,732
Trade and bills receivables EWE 5 R ERE 11,120
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables TERT IR - 12 & R H M FE YR 14,995
Due from related parties JE Y A3 A = 3E 4,019
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREFEY 2,829
Assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale D3 A#FBIEHE 2 HEHERI 2 EE 339,125
Liabilities =R
Trade and bills payables JEfE 5 RIA R B IE 161,269
Other payables and accruals HMENFIERETER 131,420
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings RITREAMEEEE 92,863
Due to related parties JE T A A 58 3,367
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of a JE < — FE MY /BB R B SR AR AR 3R 3K
subsidiary 31,967
420,386
Non-current Liabilities FRBEME
Deferred income EFEUA 11,854
Liabilities directly associated with the assets YR RBELE cEEEEAH
classified as held for sale Z8fE 432,740
Net liabilities directly associated with the HHEHRNEEEAE 8EFE
disposal groups 93,615

At 31 December 2013, certain items of the
discontinued operation’s property, plant and ERIEREXB 2 BETYE BE
equipment and leasehold land with a net carrying REAREEL AR (REF
amount of approximately HK$44,362,000 (2012: BEH R # AE44,362,0008 L (=&
HK$36,106,000) (note 14) and HK$16,027,000 (2012: — =% :36,106,000/75) (Kizx14)
HK$16,035,000) (note 15) were pledged to secure 16,027,000 T (=& — — £ :
bank loans of the discontinued operation, respectively. 16,035,000/ 7T) (H&E1 5) ) B R
NERERIEREER 2RITER

DR e e [y S (o |
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHRERM

31 December 2013

— &
=
=

24,

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7

=#+=-A=+—H
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 24, RIFIREEFE ()
The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued R PR R EA VIS B R
operations are as follows: mr
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Net cash (used in)/from operating &ESES) (FRE) /P8RS
activities FRE (101,080) 120,673
Net cash from/(used in) investing REEEME/ (FMA)BA:
activities HEE 32,470 (66,081)
Net cash from/(used in) financing BMEFBANE (FA)RS
activities FEE 68,735 (52,850)
Effect of foreign exchange rate INES[E R E R R B FFE
changes, net (919) 411)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be R/ mAFHE (794) 1,331

Loss per share:
Basic and diluted from the
discontinued operations

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per
share from the discontinued operations are based on:

FRER
EARANEE KERLEEEXRD

8.37 cents 1l

11.67 cents Il

RIMRERE 2 BRER R EERN T
RIBAT BURETE

2013 2012

Loss attributable to ordinary RERIEREXBE 2 RT]

equity holders of the parent from TRRERE ARIGERE

the discontinued operations (99,972) (139,111)
Weighted average number of ARAESRERNLKBEEER

ordinary shares used in the basic and 3% 2 N4 F 19

diluted loss per share calculation (Mg5E13)

(note 13) 1,195,162 1,191,660




25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

B RS R R M AL

31 December 2013
—E—=%F+-_H=+—H
ENESZFEREZE
RREPRCENE ZFHIBRERIRE
EHHHEMNRESITOT

Group

AEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within 1 month — @ AR 6,941 50,044
1 to 2 months —ZE W& A 19,460 52,842
2 to 3 months —E=={EA - 192
Over 3 months Bid=1EA 2,000 79,127
28,401 182,205

At 31 December 2013, trade payables from
discontinued operations of approximately
HK$55,978,000 bore interest at 6% per annum
and are settled on 300-day terms. The remaining
trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled on 30-day terms and 180-
day terms, respectively. At 31 December 2013, bills
payable from continuing operations of approximately
HK$19,460,000 (2012: HK$74,634,000) were secured
by the time deposits of the Group (note 23).

All the trade and bills payable are denominated in
Renminbi.

RZE—=F+ZA=+—8H" X%
BRIEKEEEB2ENEZERD
55,978,000 ST LA F6EFT B - A
300BHIRRGZEH R TENEZERRK
EBEHVARRE RO H—HKIKE308 &
180HHIREHE N E—=F+=H
=t —B - REFELEEB CER
EE 419,460,000 L (& — =& :
74,634,0007% 70 ) Jh LA AN 52 & TE 8377 3K
TEEHR (MFsE23) o

FIBRNEZFARREGAARER
(=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E

31 December 2013

— T
—=

Z—=F+-R=+—H
26.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

26. HttENREREFER

Group Company
x&E LN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET TR TET

Other payables H ot e 508
Accruals Bt ER

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

Other payables and accruals denominated in
other currency

Included in the other payables and accruals are the
following amounts denominated in a currency other
than the presentation currency:

11,716 116,763 - -
2,926 11,369 2,876 2,166
14,642 128,132 2,876 2,166

Hip B A% S AR A=E
Ao

LAE th & 5 5B 2 EL At FE Y FRIE I BT
g2H

BRREMENFENESERSNUZE
BEBUINZ BB EZ A TR

2013 2012
RMB'000 HK$000 RMB'000 HK$'000
AR®TR TEgx ARETL TR

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7

9,243 11,756 101,259 125,956




27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR M A

31 December 2013

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. SBITREMFEEE
BORROWINGS
2013 2012
Effective Effective
Group F5E interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
BRAZ H#A TAn ERFIE 5#A TEn
(%) (%)
Current 0
Bank loans - secured RTER-CHER 4.809.38 2014 67,410 6.00-6.56 2013 32,382
Other loans - unsecured EfER-RER - On demand 9 1200 Ondemand 3,745
BER REX
67,419 36,087
2013 2012
Effective Effective
Company A interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
BRAZ HHA TAR ERF = %A TAL
(%) (%)
Current Il
Other loans - unsecured HER-EER On demand
= REX 9 - - -
Notes: B 5
(a) As at 31 December 2013, the Group's bank (a) RZ_E—=%F+_A=+—8"
loans of continuing operations amounting to REBERBBELEXEB 2RITER
HK$67,410,000 (2012: HK$3,732,000) and nil 67,410,000 L (= ——F:
(2012: HK$16,171,000) are secured by a property 3,732,000 ) R EB T (ZT—=
held by related party (note 37(b)) and a property %F:16,171,0008 L) T3 9 Bl LA —
held by an independent third party of the Group, ZEEFFEE 2z —EYE (M
respectively. 370b)) R—BNYE=FFEHEZ—A
VIEEVEH R o
Apart from the above, as at 31 December 2012, the BREMEN RZT—ZF+=
Group's bank loan amounting to HK$12,439,000 A=+—B XEBRTER
is secured by property, plant and equipment and 12,439,000 7T Ty LAY 2 - 5B K 5%
leasehold land, which had carrying value at the BREE T (RIREEAREmE
end of the reporting period of HK$36,106,000 and % 5l /36,106,000 7T £ 16,035,000
HK$16,035,000, respectively. o) EHE AR -
(b) The Group's bank and other borrowings are all (b) REBMBRITEEMEEEHIUAR

denominated in RMB.

HE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 & Y

31 December 2013

H=

N—=

28.

T—-=F+-A=+—H

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the
year are as follows:

28. EEBEBEEE
FRELEHRBEBEENAGBZEHNT:

Fair value adjustments
arising from acquisition

Group AEE of subsidiaries
WEM B A RMES
DNEERE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At 1 January n—H—8 120 14,266
Deferred tax credited to FREFAGZERAREKZ
the consolidated income RIERIE (FiFE10)
statement during the year
(note 10) (15) (14,226)
Exchange realignment ME 5 3 B 2 80
Gross deferred tax liabilities BW+—A=+—HZ
at 31 December B IBEEEER 107 120

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of HK$366,811,000 (2012: HK$252,035,000) that
will expire in one to five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIEEEEGR 2 7

REBAPBRAREEAZBHIEES
$8366,811,0008 L (ZE ——4F:
252,035,000 7T ) * FrE 4 2 E5 18 Al A
R —ERF A ERBUEF - B &
NZEEERRELHIBEE  REAL
BB REREEE —BREREZH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R

31 December 2013
R-E—=F+="A=+—H

29. DEFERRED INCOME 29. EEWA
The movements in deferred income during the year TREFELERA 2 & F):

are as follows:

Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At 1 January n—H—H 12,097 12,500
Amortisation provided during the year 4 AEHR # 58 (510) (498)
Transfer to assets classified as EERENR
held for sale RFBEHECEE (11,854) -
Exchange realignment ME H, 58 B 267 95
At 31 December R+t—A=+—H - 12,097
The balance represents the government grant for RARANEEAEEE TEEREZ
construction of certain of the Group's production AT - W E PR 4R A I iR &
plants and has been accounted for as deferred income ZESHEARIENECEEEREH
under liabilities directly associated with the assets BEETNZEERA ZELEWATR
classified as held for sale in the consolidated statement BN EEE 2 At EAFHNRER
of financial position. Such deferred income is FEIEHEREWERA
amortised on the straight-line basis to the consolidated
income statement over the expected useful lives of the
relevant assets acquired.
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. WA
Shares vy
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Authorised: AR
4,000,000,000 4,000,000,000% (=& — =4 :
(2012: 4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,0000% )
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREE0NEITH B R 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRERR
1,195,162,397 1,195,162,397 (=T ——_4%:
(2012: 1,195,162,397) 1,195,162,397/%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each HFIREEO. 178 T Y L AL 119,516 119,516
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 & Y

31 December 2013

R_T—=F+_-_A=+—H

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 30. IRA ()
During 2012, the subscription rights attaching to M =Z— 4 4,520,00015 B % R B8
4,520,000 share options were exercised at the ERENREEBER0288E TR
subscription price of HK$0.288 and HK$0.19 per 0198 LT (M 3E31) BB 34T
share (note 31), resulting in the issue of 4,520,000 4,520,0000% & & E E0.175 TR 15 - 42
shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration, HeRE (RNKBEY) A1,282,00055
before expenses, of HK$1,282,000. An amount of T N BB IR FEE TR - A 84,813,000
HK$4,813,000 was transferred from the share option EILLBO BRI EERERD S
reserve to the share premium account upon the BHEE o
exercise of the share options.
A summary of the transactions during the year and last e P RN T BEITIRAREE) - K
year with reference to the above movements in the FEREFRNNTZEMMT :
Company'’s issued share capital is as follows:
Number of Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
BT
RO#ME CEBORE RORER # st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TER
At 1 January 2012 R-Z——F—A—H 1,190,642,397 119,064 712,926 831,990
Share options exercised BiTiE iR 4,520,000 452 5,643 6,095
At 31 December 2012, RZZ—_%
1 January 2013 and +-A=+—-H
31 December 2013 —FT-=f—-H—H
RZZE-=F
+-A=+-H 1,195,162,397 119,516 718,569 838,085
Share options i IR A

Details of the Company'’s share option scheme and the
share options issued under the scheme are included in
note 31 to the financial statements.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIEEEEGR 2 7
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31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company’s
shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder
in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 23 May 2007 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

31.

g EE

31 December 2013
RZE—=F+"A=+—8H
RS E
RNATRMBEREE ([5T81)) - §
TETR R B N RN T AR R B B ARt
EHBERMNEER2HEHE -FEINEE
B2EEBERARANES (BEEL
FHITES) AKEHMEER KEE
EmaRBEHER AEEEF XA
AR R AR RIME A TR IEEE R AR
RostglR—_ZETLFRA-T=RARE
ERCBRIESBBURRER BRIE B
% FEH W10 »

IR EAR IR ST IR A R 1T (R B IR
BB ARITEERE R AR RMEMR
B R B 21T AR D B9 10% » AT faI1218 A
HEA SIS ER2BEREBRE
AETHRO &S EE RNRARBZEH
AEREHEE BITIRD M 1%  EBINE
B I PR A A B AR B A R R AR R K
kil

MARREE THRAEHKFERESK
BT AR LB REALE IR
TESSRME WIN MARAIEER
R BUIERTESSIHEENHEAR
B BB A RE MR 1 21 B HARS B @A A
BRI R RE B 1TAR50.1% kA& (1R
BEREHBHARRBRMERTE) R
#85,000,000/8 7 - ZBERRARE RS
FERHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% R & Y =

31 December 2013
NZE—=%+=-A=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BRESTE (&)
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted AR ANBET B TRERNRKEE A
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment RIRE2 HERE 21 B AR R D ERE
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the MIEE BHEBRENTERHRESE
grantee. The exercise period of the share options TREERERE SRABHTNER
granted is determinable by the directors, and REEREBHNEEHE (AKR
commences after a vesting period and ends on a date HAXE)HEFH10FE -

which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme,

if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable BRENTEERESEE T B AK
by the directors, but may not be less than the RUTESE: VAR TRONIZEZHE
higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the A% B ERE B AT PRI T B (VAN B A%
Company's shares on the date of offer of the share MR BER A AEST S B RS
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price Fr U mig  RGiDA AT IRmDRIESR
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days HEREE -

immediately preceding the date of offer, and (i) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of

offer.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to B A R T B T A A UREUIR B s A B
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. HEAE FIFREMRER o
The following share options were outstanding under RENR NI tEB TERES KT
the Scheme during the year: &
2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
Average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
per share of options per share of options
I BRE ME¥ BE
BRTEE B  BRTEE g
HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000
BT TR BT T
At 1 January n—H—A 0.73 64,290 0.70 64,790
Granted during the year FARH - - 0.694 14,000
Exercised during the year FRTE - - 0.284 (4,520)
Lapsed during the year FERKM 0.70 (16,940) 0.72 (9,980)
At 31 December R s g ke 0.74 47,350 0.73 64,290
No share options were exercised during the year. The FREBETEBRIE-R_F— —F17
weighted average share price at the date of exercise {ERBRR R T B im0 hiiEF 9 R E &
for share options exercised in 2012 was HK$0.63 per FHR0.638 T
share.

140 Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBEEE AR A 7



31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

B RS R AR M A

31 December 2013

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. EERESE (®)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

RIEHR - RITEBRENITEER

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting 1TEERIN T
period are as follows:
2013 —B-—=F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE THEE> THREH
HK$
‘000 per share
TR BRET
2,500 0.62 12-07-2011 to 11-07-2014
9,550 0.83 13-09-2011 to 12-09-2014
50 0.73 26-04-2012 to 25-04-2015
100 1.152 04-05-2012 to 03-05-2015
2,500 0.62 12-07-2012 to 11-07-2015
9,550 0.83 13-09-2012 to 12-09-2015
5,000 0.66 10-10-2012 to 09-10-2015
5,000 0.66 10-10-2013 to 09-10-2016
100 1.152 04-05-2013 to 03-05-2016
6,500 0.694 31-10-2013 to 30-10-2016
6,500 0.694 31-10-2014 to 30-10-2017
47,350
2012 —E——F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERE TREE> THRES
‘000 HK$ per share
TR BRETT
1,620 0.73 26-04-2011 to 25-04-2014
1,670 0.73 26-04-2012 to 25-04-2015
2,500 0.62 12-07-2011 to 11-07-2014
2,500 0.62 12-07-2012 to 11-07-2015
10,900 0.83 13-09-2011 to 12-09-2014
10,900 0.83 13-09-2012 to 12-09-2015
100 1.152 04-05-2012 to 03-05-2015
100 1.152 04-05-2013 to 03-05-2016
10,000 0.66 10-10-2012 to 09-10-2015
10,000 0.66 10-10-2013 to 09-10-2016
7,000 0.694 31-10-2013 to 30-10-2016
7,000 0.694 31-10-2014 to 30-10-2017
64,290
x The exercise price of the share options is subject to * TE AR o B4 TAT AR 5l 2N A B IR AN E At

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

i
BB

BNBERT  BRENITEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R R Y =

31 December 2013
NZE—=%+=-A=+—H

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BEIRRESE (8)
No share options were granted during the year. FRITEFHERE - N _TE——FK
The fair value of the share options granted in 2012 H B I 4 HY A (B 55,070,000 7T (&
was HK$5,070,000 (HK$0.36 each). The Group BR0.36870) c AEBREEZE_T—=F
recognised a share option expense of HK$5,100,000 + - A=+—HIEEERAERERY
during the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 5,100,000/ 7t ( —&— =4 : 9,373,000
HK$9,373,000). BT e
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted R —FRERELESTERENTF
in 2012 was estimated as at the date of grant, using BERAEHASEA —_BERAERIELGE
a binomial model, taking into account the terms and o REREERER LR RIEE-
conditions upon which the options were granted. The TEHVFAAEXNHSIEER -
following table lists the inputs to the model used:
2012
Grant date
X B
31-10-2012
Dividend yield (%) [i% B4 2 (%) -
Expected volatility (%) T8 B R 18 (%) 86.29 — 93.23
Historical volatility (%) & SR8 (%) 86.29 — 93.23
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 [3 B F1 2R (%) 0.57-0.74
Expected life of options (years) BRETEEEH (F) 4-5
Weighted average share price g EaE
(HK$ per share) (8RBT 0.694

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 47,350,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 47,350,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$4,735,000 and share
premium of HK$42,615,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 28,025,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 1.9% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBEE B AR A 7

BRENTERFHRBEEE=FNESL
BEAE T —ERITHEEANER-
T8 H R 0 2 AR IR S2 R 0 R FE R AR KB B
MIEENERR T ERERER-
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RIBEHR AR RIREFEB TN RITE
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1 1% 8 BN 7] 85 1747,350,000/% B8/
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RR M

31 December 2013
W-F—=F+-A=+-H

32. RESERVES 32. %
(@)  Group (@) HEM
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and REBAEERBEAEENRE
the movements therein for the current and LEGES) BN ES
prior years are presented in the consolidated FEAREBO)E T AR B
statement of changes in equity on page 52 of ALK

the consolidated financial statements.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the KREBEMNEHFHEERNDZITR
difference between the nominal value of the mHEE B _EEEF+ A
shares issued and the nominal value of shares —thBERZZE—ZF—H+=
of the subsidiaries acquired at the time of the HETEESARBFWEHRE A
group reorganisation on 29 December 2000 BN EERENERE.

and 12 January 2010.

(b) Company (b) AEAF
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
B EER BRERE ZitER @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt FET FAT FAR FET
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-E——%—-F—H 712,926 21,872 (436,684) 298,114
Total comprehensive loss TEEZEFEAE
for the year - - (265,109) (265,109)
Share options exercised BT RRE 30 5,643 (4,813) - 830
Equity-settled share option R IR B IRER B
arrangements 31 - 9,373 - 9,373
Transfer of share option TR AR SR A
reserve upon the lapse of BREREREER
share options - (4,043) - (4,043)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z%+ZAR
=ft-A 718,569 22,389 (701,793) 39,165
Total comprehensive loss AEER2EBRLEE
for the year - - (2,981) (2,981)
Equity-settled share option R IER B IRER B
arrangements 31 - 5,100 - 5,100
Transfer of share option R R R
reserve upon the lapse of BREREREER
share options - (7.539) - (7.539)
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=%
AP = 718,569 19,950 (704,774) 33,745
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% R Y o

31 December 2013
NZE—=%+=-A=+—H

N—=

32.

33.

RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company (continued)
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of share options granted which are yet
to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.5 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to accumulated
losses should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

In July 2013, a subsidiary purchased the Equity Interest
of Ningxia Kelong Industrial Co. Limited (“Ningxia
Kelong”) through capital injection of RMB5.1 million.
Upon completion of the capital injection, the group
held 51% of the equity interest in Ningxia Kelong, a
company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability.
Ningxia Kelong engages principally in promotion
and application of research and development in
plant biotechnology, promotion and application in
plant cloning technology, cropping and marketing
in vegetable and floriculture and operation in green
food business. In order to seek for more business
opportunities and to maximize return.
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33.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

31 December 2013
R-E—=F+="A=+—H

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 33. WE—RFEHEAT (&)

The acquisition completed during the year ended
31 December 2013 had the following effect on

WRE-F-—=6+-A=+-ALF
SRR IR I B A R E AR

the Group's assets and liabilities on the date of FEEZELINT:
acquisition:
Net Asset acquired ks EESE
2013
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment M HWE &R 1,869
Inventories FE 4,868
Other receivables Hth & YUK IR 4,822
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREFEDY 104
Accruals and other payables JE 5T B FA I B JE < 5RIE (31)
11,632
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE (5.700)
5,932
Goodwill BES 468
Consideration RE 6,400
Consideration satisfied by: REXFFR:
Cash paid RENE (6,400)
Net cash outflow arising on Acquisition WIE4L 2B SR H FHE
Consideration paid in cash MR e 2RE (6,400)
Cash and cash equivalent FriE 2 & IR FEMEER
balances acquired 104
(6,296)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS HR AR M &

31 December 2013
R-E—=F+="A=+—H
34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 28 December 2012, the Group disposed of the
entire issued share capital of Mutual Zone Limited to
an independent third party for a cash consideration of

3. HEWNBAF
RZFE—ZF+ZA=Z+ B K&E
LAIR £ 1X{81,000,000/8 T EEG R A
A2 EHEBITRAEE T —RBILE

HK$1,000,000. =J5e
2012
HK$'000
FHET

Net assets disposed of: HE TS SIBEEFME:

Property, plant and equipment W= BEMEE 100
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHER 53
Inventories BE 62
Prepayments and other receivables TE A RRIE I B Ath 8 W Rk IE 7,796
Trade payables g S EMFE (2,488)
Accruals and other payables FEEHE A R E M B 5RIE (1,156)
4,367
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEE (3,367)
1,000
Satisfied by Cash AR &2 T 1,000

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIEEEEGR A 7



34.

35.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is

B RS R AR M A

31 December 2013
R-E—=F+="A=+—H
HEMHMBAR (&)
BRALENBRARIZRERREEEYD
MAFBEATOT

as follows:
2012
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration HaRE 1,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of FItE 2B e RIRITER (53)
Net inflow of cash and cash FREEMBARICEER
equivalents in respect of RESEMRAFRE
the disposal of subsidiaries 947
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. EEIEH

AEBENAEEEEFERZEBNRE
FARTTE R IE D RIS I 75 3R P 5

Details of the Group's bills payable and bank loans,
which are secured by the assets of the Group, are

included in notes 25 and 27, respectively, to the 25827 ©
financial statements.
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36. REHEZH

AEERBEEHELHHEESTY
X-PEEEHEA—E=RFHY-

The Group leases certain of its properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to five
years.

RZE—=F+-_A=+—H £KEH
RARRRIREA AT RS S LA
ARFERS AN T

At 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company
had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

Group Company
X&E N

2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TAT
Within one year —FR 3,594 3,593 338 657
In the second to fifth years RE_EERF 4,469 4,457 - 383
8,063 8,050 338 1,040
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR ERME

31 December 2013

RZFT—
37.

(a)

=F+-A=+—H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 37. BEALTXS RS
In addition to the transactions detailed (a) BZEMBEHEREAMIM LM
elsewhere in these financial statements, the RGN REBRAREE K
Group had the following transactions with BEATHEUNTRS:
related parties during the year:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FE T FAT
Transaction with R 7838 A A
related companies*: BUTRSG*:
Rent paid [=ENEicEA (i) 844 734
Interest expenses FMEFHX (ii) 160 75
* Related companies are companies under * BEANRIARA —ESH
significant influence of a director of the LRSEDN-7 PA/NCIE
Company.
Notes: B3
0) The office and warehouse rental expenses (i) MAEREERER IR

(b)

were made according to market prices.

(ii) The interest expenses arose from the loans
advanced from Orientelite Investments
Limited, which was unsecured and bore
interest at 3-month HIBOR+1% per annum.

Other transactions with related parties
During the year, the Group’s bank loan of
HK$3,816,000 (2012: HK$3,732,000) was
secured by a property held by Guangzhou
TianTian Friendship Co., Ltd., a company under
significant influence of a predecessor director of
the Company.

The Group’s bank loan of HK$63,594,000
(2012: Nil) was secured by properties held
by Linxianghuayin Properties Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. ("EEMiZER B ¥ %
BEEREABMRAA"), a related party of the
Group, and guaranteed by Mr. Jiang Jianjun, a
director of the Group, Linxianghuayin Properties
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. and
Harbin China Distillery Co., Ltd.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIEEEEGR A 7

mEEL -

(i) FE.F X JhE 4 B Orientelite
Investments Limited&\ {1 2 &
o BRI EE IR FF LA
IEABARITRAERE+E

R

(b) EEREEBEALETZHMRS
FAN AEB2ETERK
3,816,000 L (ZF — 4
3,732,000 7T ) JTh LA E M R K&
FHERMBRAR (KAARZAE
EEHHEAEATE QA
BEN—IBYEEERR-

REE M IRTTEF63,594,0007%8
TT(ZE——F:E)RME
REXKREBRRABRAA (KK
EMBEEAL)IBENYEE
B THAEBESFTIEF X
EBRNEREXREREAR
RERBREFEBEERA A
YEHELR o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2013
RW-ZE—=F+-"A=+—H
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 37. BEAITXRERER (E)

(continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: (c) BAREE AT 2 MR EBELLEE:
Group Company
A58 b
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Wiz THR T TER TR
Due from related parties ~ EABEALRE
Guangdong Baichengwandian ER BHBERE
Investment and BERARLA
Development Co., Ltd. (i), (iv) 4,007 6,744 - -
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TRELA (i) 7 2,672 - 2,100
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TRREE (i) 4 - - -
Shenzhen Huagin Investment  RIIZEHREHLE
and Development Co,, Ltd. ~ ARAH (iv) - 380 = -
Shenzhen Jianlai Industrial ~ FHTEREZERAA
Co., Ltd. (iv) 10,174 - - -
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor BN BERZBR A
Distribution Co., Ltd. (v) 302 217 - -
Guangzhou TianTian BMAX (i - 151 - -
Hainan BAPP Bio-Technology /&R 12 7B #1£4)
Limited Company BERAR 0] - 74 - -
Hunan Diancang Jiugui NEAREREHE
Liquor Co., Ltd. BRAR 746 - = -
15,310 10,238 - 2,100
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g E

31 December 2013

R-E—=F+-"HA=+—H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)

37. BEAEIXZRER (&)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: () EHEHE AT 2 MR EERE:
(continued) (&)
Group Company
S| KRR
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE TER TAER FEx THL
Due to related parties ERBEALHE
Guangzhou TianTian BMAX 0] 12,295 12,02 - -
Mr. Qu Shuncai BIEA %4 (i 313 - = -
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TRELE (i) 1,089 224 860 -
Orientelite Investments Limited Orientelite Investments
Limited (i) 11,550 11,550 11,550 11,550
Shenzhen Jianlai ATRREZBRAA
Industrial Co., Ltd. (iv) 10,951 3732 - -
Shanghai Moulin FEREKXEERAF
International Ltd. - 3,231 - -
Shenzhen Huagin Investment  RIIZESIRE LR
and Development Co., Ltd. ~ BRAA (iv) 20,079 - - -
Shenzhen Huayin Jinshajiang ~ ZJITEELHT
Investment Development Co, HREAZEARAF
Ltd (iv) 12,7119 - - -
68,996 30,939 12,410 11,550
Due to a non-controlling ~ FEfF— R B AR
shareholder of a FERBRTE
subsidiary - 31,263 - -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Bt 755 R AR B

31 December 2013
R-E—=F+-"HA=+—H

37. BEAIXZRER (&)

Outstanding balances with related parties: () EHEE AT 2 MR EERE:
(continued) (%)
Notes: Mz -
(i) Companies under significant influence of a 0) ZATIARNT —EEHE
director of the Company. BEAEEZNT]
(i) A director of the Company. (ii) KAGEE
(iii) A close family member of a director of the (iif) RKANREEVHEHRZBE-
Company.
(iv) Companies controlled by Mr. Jiang Jianjun. (iv) STiEE S Aid 2 N FE e
(v) Company controlled by the non-controlling (v) — BB A &) FE 4 B A% B Fr i
shareholder of a subsidiary. e AN
Except for the amount due to Orientelite K& FE <F Orientelite Investments
Investments Limited, which bore interest at LimitedZ I8 37 5 F31E A &5 4R
3-month HIBOR+1% per annum, the balances TRIEREES BN HEE
with the related parties are unsecured, interest ANT v E&%AEEEE . 58 &
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. EmETEEE o
Compensation of key management d XTEEFTEEEBEABEZHEHE
personnel
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET
Short term employee benefits %2 #{& B &7 821 927
Post-employment benefits BBk 1212 A1 12 5
Equity-settled share option IR E 2 BRI X
expense 890 3,638
Total compensation paid to key S FFEEBEEAEZ
management personnel HE®EE 1,723 4,570

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of
items (a)(i) above also constituted de minimis
continuing connected transactions as defined in
chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

ERESHE 2 E—FPHBHEA
PR IR S

B LAMIBE Q) CBEALR
SNBRRERBREBERS
(EER EMHEBIFI14AE) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 2 Y o

31 December 2013
NZE—=%+=-A=+—H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. £ERITEDHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RIPEHR ZESHMTEEBmAED
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T

period are as follows:

Financial assets TRIEE
Group Company
b3 KAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
Loans and Loans and Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables receivables receivables
ERR 693 BRR 7R
ERRE JEMFIR ERHE FEMIE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt TER TAEL TER TAET
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRREZRE 18 = - 167,529 167,188
Investment in an associate RBE R ZRE 19 6,200 3,612 = -
Trade and bills receivables ERESETRERE 4,630 5,973 = -
Financial assets included in BEABRRE:
prepayments, deposits and ReREMER
other receivables TEZEREE 10,754 5,831 - 1414
Due from related parties el A TR 15,310 10,238 = 2,100
Pledged deposits BERER 7,784 37317 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 25,487 8,398 20 1372
70,165 71,369 167,549 172,074
Group Company
r£E b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
Financial Financial Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
at amortised atamortised  at amortised at amortised
cost cost cost cost
RESRE  REERE  RBEEE  REENE
JEMEE  ZERERE  ZERBE  ceRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR FiEx FEL
Trade and bills payables ENEAFERER 28,401 182,205 - -
Financial liabilities included in BEt AEAMERFER
other payables and accruals [EAHER 2RAE 14,642 106,187 2,876 2,166
Interest-bearing bank and TERTRAEE
other borrowings 67,419 36,087 9 -
Due to related parties ERBEZEALIVA 68,996 30,939 12,410 11,550
Due to a non-controlling el —mKE LA
shareholder of a subsidiary FERBRE - 31,263 - -
179,458 386,681 15,295 13,716

The carrying amounts of the above balances
approximate to their fair values.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIEEEEGR A 7
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts
due from/to related parties, pledged deposits and
cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables
and trade and bills payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short
term borrowings with fixed interest rates. Therefore,
any future variations in interest rates will not have a
significant impact on the results of the Group.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China
and all transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of
the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, except for certain bank balances denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. The
Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

39.

B RS R R MR

31 December 2013
R-E—=F+="A=+—H

cHERBEEZEEREX

AEBFESRMT ABETBRITR
HipfE 8- U A BEA TR
BEERERNEE NESFEY %F
ERIAZIBZENABRESIFAR
BELm® - AEBARNEWE SR
RERBELENESFAMZREFSZA
HemEEMBE ZEEREER
BEIREXRGHIERES

AEEERMTAZEIZARSMNEAE
2 NERE FERRMABESRE
R-EEERAMHEEETHEARZ
BUER WAL o

R AR
AEBAETRAERED 2 AR E BN
AEEE R AR Bl A E

REARZE -

1 mLBR

AEB 2 FHURHPBEARE  MAAR
ZYANANREET - AERBARIDEE
REBBEAAREIIE 1R TIRITER
B 7T MR TTHIERR S o AR B 4
R LS O R LR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 2 Y o

31 December 2013
NZE—=%+=-A=+—H

N—=

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3. 2RiEREECEEREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) ShEE R B (4E)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TEREARCEFMEEMBEHITENBER
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible T AREBEXR ABOEE2FHARE
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other Hi RS AN E B REZS B SRR o
variables held constant, of the Group's equity.
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in equity*
ARBER s
@, i,
(R2) (RA) *
% HK$'000
FET
2013 —s-—=%
If the Hong Kong dollar METHEARERE
weakens against the RMB (5) 1,560
If the Hong Kong dollar WMETHAREHE
strengthens against the RMB 5 (1,560)
2012 —E-C-F
If the Hong Kong dollar WmETEARERE
weakens against the RMB (5) 10,860
If the Hong Kong dollar WMETHAREHE
strengthens against the RMB 5 (10,860)

* Excluding accumulated losses

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, amounts
due from related parties and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
assets.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIEEEEGR A 7
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R MR

31 December 2013
R-E—=F+="A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3. sREREEZEERBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERKE (&)
Since the Group trades only with recognised and A ANEEEHEZERITRAZEZE=
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for FETES RN WEESIRREE
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed EEZERBZERIBERIIIRE Y
by counterparty, by geographical region and by WERITEEE ARAERERE S
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations BRAHEAESHARTEAEERITENR
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases PR NEBRATEBZETNEE
of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed I
in different sectors and industries.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s BAEEREEKE FERLEAMRE
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables WHBz ZERBZE—STEEED
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 22 P B FE SR = M 521 R M 352295 55 o
to the financial statements, respectively.
Liquidity risk REBESREKE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds REFFBEEEREIRE T AR
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool SREBREAR - ZTAHGESHITAENLS
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments BEE (INEIWE FRIEREE ) 15| HE
and financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) HE LB EEANIR S T
and projected cash flows from operations.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance REF 7 BEAERETERLEAME
between continuity of funding and flexibility through BERIEESHEBENREEME-
the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities REREHIR  NEBR LR AATEREDET
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the MEREVBENZ S A G HIE R
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: T
2013 2012
Within Within
Group 1 year Total 1 year Total
& —£R CL —FR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THET TER
Trade and bills payables ENESFERER 28,401 28,401 182,205 182,205
Financial liabilities included in Bt AR RIER
other payables and accruals EirERzeMAR 14,642 14,642 106,187 106,187
Interest-bearing bank and SERTRAMEE
other borrowings 67,419 67,419 36,087 36,087
Due to related parties e A TR 68,996 68,996 30,939 30,939
Due to a non-controlling EN—ERELAR
shareholder of a subsidiary FERRRRE - - 31,263 31,263
179,458 179,458 386,681 386,681
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHRERM

31 December 2013
NZE—=%+=-A=+—H

N—=

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3. £HEREEZEERBE (E&)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) ABESRER (&)
2013 2012
Within Within
Company 1 year Total 1 year Total
LN —£R CE —FR aaf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TER FHET FEx
Financial liabilities included in Bt ARMERRIER
other payables and accruals [EAERzcREE 2,876 2,876 2,166 2,166
Interest-bearing bank and FERITREMEE
other borrowings 9 9 - -
Due to related parties FEfAEA LA 12,410 12,410 11,550 11,550
15,295 15,295 13,716 13,716
Capital management EXERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012.

Sino Distillery Group Limited HEIEEEEGR 2 7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M AL

31 December 2013
R-E—=F+="A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3. SRIEMEEZEERKE ()
POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued) BEXEE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, REBUEABBELEE (BB FERERKRIA
which is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt. BERNMERFE)EZEEANBRL K
The Group's policy is to maintain an optimal capital SENBXRAERFERNELABEL
structure which reduces cost of capital. Net debt EHRERKA BB FEBEEN
includes trade and bills payables, other payables and B 53 IE KRR - Hith B RIE R EAT
accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, BR HERTREMEE  ERNAZEA
amounts due to related parties and a non-controlling T R —FEIME AR FEERAR R KIE - I
shareholder of a subsidiary, less cash and cash BERSRRSEEMRBRBFR-
equivalents and pledged deposits. Capital includes BEARBERARIHAE AELEZ R
equity attributable to owners of the parent. The LHR - EARABELEREOT:
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:
Group 2013 2012
REE HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Interest-bearing bank and TRRITREAMEE
other borrowings 67,419 36,087
Trade and bills payables BB SHERER 28,401 182,205
Other payables and accruals HtENRIERESTER 14,642 128,132
Due to related parties FERTRE A L FRIB 68,996 30,939
Due to a non-controlling FE — R B A A
shareholder of a subsidiary FEVERR IR R TR I8 - 31,263
Less: Cash and cash equivalents HIBeRREEED (25,487) (8,398)
Pledged deposit B ER (7,784) (37,317)
Net debt (ECLEE: 146,187 362,911
Capital =N (41,189) 82,120
Capital and net debt BARRER F5E 104,998 445,031
Gearing ratio BEREGELE 139% 82%
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. HEHESBIE

(@  As announced on 21 January 2014, the
Company entered into the Subscription
Agreements with the Subscribers for the
subscription of an aggregate 239,032,479
Subscription Shares at the Subscription Price
of HK$0.405 per Subscription Share. The
Subscription Shares represent approximately
20.00% of the existing issued share capital of
the Company and approximately 16.67% of
the Company's issued share capital as enlarged
by the Subscription.

(@ WOR-ZE—NFE—HA=+—H
it ANARERBE AR
iR R B ESRRERD
0.405% JL R HE & $£239,032,479
RRERD - REROEERE
NAIRAEBITIRANLI20.00% X
KRBEERERNEZARAEHE
ITIEA#916.67% °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013
R-E—=F+="A=+—H
40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(b)

As announced on 28 January 2014, the Group
has started to explore co-operation opportunity
with P EEBEA{ZARR 2 A (CECT-Chinacomm
Communications Co., Limited, “CECT-
Chinacomm™), a company incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China with limited liability.
CECT-Chinacomm and its ultimate beneficial
owners are independent of and not connected
with the Company and its connected persons.
CECT-Chinacomm has the development right in
respect of a parcel of land in Beijing Economic
and Technological Development Area and will
construct a project known as Beijing Wireless
Broadband Industrial Park on the parcel of land.
An indirect subsidiary of CECT-Chinacomm is
appointed as the operating company of the
Project, and has legally obtained the Land
Use Right Certificate, the Planning Permit and
the Construction Land Use Permit. The co-
operation s still in discussion stage and no
formal agreement has been entered into by the
parties. The Board expects that the Company
will be able to join CECT-Chinacomm and its
subsidiary to develop the project for commercial
benefits.

On 24 February 2014, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”),
entered into the Agreement with the
Zhaodong Beidahuang Biotechnology Limited
and Linxiang Huayin Changjiang Small and
Medium Enterprises Guarantee Limited (the
“Purchasers”), whereby the Purchasers have
conditionally agreed to purchase and the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell the Sale
Capital, representing all 75% equity interest in
Harbin China Distillery Company Limited held
by the subsidiary at the consideration of RMB40
million. Details are set out in the announcement
dated 28 February 2014.
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(b)

HREE(FE)

BN —E—NFE—H=+N\H
Finfh AEBEERBREREF
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Ml —ER R EAR LB
M2z BRRAR) 2 EEHKE-
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TR ASOTE 190 B B I i 3R A A B
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40.

41.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(d)

As announced on 26 March 2014, BAPP
Ethanol Holdings Limited (the “BAPP”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into the Agreement with an independent
third party (the "“Purchaser”), the BAPP has
conditionally agreed to sell all 100% equity
interest in the BAPP (Northwest) Limited held by
the BAPP, which hold 100% equity interest of
Ningxia West Bright New Resource Technology
Company Limited at the consideration of
RMB40 million.

On 3 March 2014, a subsidiary included in
the disposal group as disclosed in note 24
(the”Subsidiary”) received a civil complaint
from the High People’s Court of Heilongjiang
Province in respect of a civil case where a
plaintiff claimed against the Subsidiary as
the first defendant and another party as the
second defendant in relation to the alleged
unpaid purchase price for the purchase of
corns of approximately RMB60.1 million by the
Subsidiary together with the alleged interest,
penalty and legal fees of approximately RMB4.3
million arising from the non-payment of the
said purchase price. RMB49.3 million of the
above RMB64.4 million had been included in
the trade and bills payables under liabilities
directly associated with the assets classified as
held for sale of the discontinued operations.
The Subsidiary is still negotiating the settlement
of the litigation with the plaintiff. The Directors
of the Company are of the view that the
litigation is of no material importance and has
no material adverse impact on the Disposal or
the financial position and the operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2014.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
L FEMBHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and ~ TERBMMAEEBEREANRFE 2 EERE
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five  E- -BENIFEREZ  HREEAE TR 2K
financial years, as extracted from the published audited — BZEIEME  WEIFBEE S| EFHLE-
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,

is set out below.

RESULTS E T
Year ended 31 December
HEt-A=t+-ALEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHL THL FHL FHL
(Restated) (Restated)
(EE35) (E5))
Revenue U3k 440,785 199,325 384,859 439,177 103,939
Loss before tax BREAIER (161,594) (334,586) (151,248) (113,213) (60,681)
Income tax (expenses)/credit FEH (%) /#% (395) 12,928 11,838 938 543
Loss for the year AEEFE (161,989) (321,658) (139,410) (112,275) (60,138)
Attributable to: T s
Owners of the parent BRAEEA (126,770) (277,800) (125,547) (105,012) (51,824)
Non-controlling interests SRR (35.219) (43,858) (13,863) (7,263) (8,314)
(161,989) (321,658) (139,410) (112,275) (60,138)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE -BERIIFEERKRESR

As at 31 December

RT=R=+-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx THER FTHET THEx TR
(Restated)
(&mE5)
TOTAL ASSETS EENE 560,599 520,543 730,558 758,959 529,144
TOTAL LIABILITIES EE0E (619,041) (427,729) (327,239) (254,136) (266,004)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER 17,253 (10,694) (54,601) (65,644) (48,404)
(41,189) 82,120 348,718 439,179 214,736
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